From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES GROUNDBREAKING OF NEW PERMANENT
SUPPORTIVE HOUSING IN MISSION BAY

Date: Tuesday, November 17, 2020 2:36:40 PM

Attachments: 11.17.20 Mission Bay Block 9 Groundbreaking.pdf

Jonas P Ionin

Director of Commission Affairs

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Date: Tuesday, November 17, 2020 at 12:14 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES
GROUNDBREAKING OF NEW PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING IN MISSION
BAY

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, November 17, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice(@sfgov.or

#%+ PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES
GROUNDBREAKING OF NEW PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE
HOUSING IN MISSION BAY

The development will provide wraparound supportive services and stable housing for 140
adults exiting homelessness

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the groundbreaking of a
new housing complex at Mission Bay Block 9 (Block 9), a Permanent Supportive Housing
(PSH) development in the heart of Mission Bay. Once complete in late 2021, the building will
add 140 homes to San Francisco’s PSH portfolio, as well as a community garden open to
residents and members of the larger Mission Bay community.

“As San Francisco recovers from COVID-19, it is critical that we create and acquire new
Permanent Supportive Housing so we have stable, secure homes for people in need,” said
Mayor Breed. “That’s why we created our Homelessness Recovery Plan and why we funded
projects like Block 9, which not only create new homes for formerly homeless residents, but
also creates new construction jobs to help get our economy back on track.”

The development advances the City’s strategy for economic recovery, which is centered in
stimulating new job creation and investing in infrastructure that ensures San Francisco’s post-
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, November 17, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES
GROUNDBREAKING OF NEW PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE
HOUSING IN MISSION BAY

The development will provide wraparound supportive services and stable housing for 140 adults
exiting homelessness

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the groundbreaking of a new
housing complex at Mission Bay Block 9 (Block 9), a Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH)
development in the heart of Mission Bay. Once complete in late 2021, the building will add 140
homes to San Francisco’s PSH portfolio, as well as a community garden open to residents and
members of the larger Mission Bay community.

“As San Francisco recovers from COVID-19, it is critical that we create and acquire new
Permanent Supportive Housing so we have stable, secure homes for people in need,” said Mayor
Breed. “That’s why we created our Homelessness Recovery Plan and why we funded projects
like Block 9, which not only create new homes for formerly homeless residents, but also creates
new construction jobs to help get our economy back on track.”

The development advances the City’s strategy for economic recovery, which is centered in
stimulating new job creation and investing in infrastructure that ensures San Francisco’s post-
COVID-19 economy emerges more equitable and resilient than before. Pursuing the
development of 140 units of new affordable housing for San Francisco’s most vulnerable
residents makes progress on several recommendations made by the Economic Recovery Task
Force and illustrates the City’s efforts to retain and support its residents. Block 9 is part of Mayor
Breed’s Homelessness Recovery Plan, which will expand capacity in the City’s Homelessness
Response System and make 6,000 placements available for people experiencing homelessness
over the next two years.

Block 9 is located within the Mission Bay South Redevelopment Project Area under the
jurisdiction of the Office of Community Investment and Infrastructure (OCII), the former San
Francisco Redevelopment Agency. The site has been designated as an “Agency Affordable
Housing Parcel” and is part of the OCII’s efforts to revitalize underutilized land.

“This housing project is not only going to give 140 people formerly experiencing homelessness a
safe and stable place to call home, it’s also going to enrich our Mission Bay community,” said
Supervisor Matt Haney. “Mission Bay is a wonderful place to build a community that is for
everyone in our city.”

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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The Mission Bay Project Area has seen many uses in its past, from warehouses and industrial
facilities to the former Southern Pacific Railyard. Today it is one of San Francisco’s newest
mixed-use, transit-oriented developments, and upon completion will have approximately 6,500
housing units, of which 1,900 are affordable. The Mission Bay project is anticipated to wrap up
over the next five to ten years and result in the construction of more than $700 million of new
infrastructure, over $8 billion in private vertical development, and the creation of more than
30,000 permanent jobs.

“We know that housing is the solution to homelessness,” said Abigail Stewart-Kahn, Interim
Director, San Francisco Department of Housing and Supportive Housing. “Permanent Supportive
Housing is a critical component of the Mayor’s Homelessness Recovery Plan and the key to
eradicating chronic homelessness in our community.”

“OCII strives to create inclusive neighborhoods that provide opportunities for individuals and
families of all backgrounds and income levels,” said Nadia Sesay, Executive Director, OCII.
“Block 9 is an important addition to the diverse and growing Mission Bay community. In
addition to providing urgently-needed homes and supportive services, the project has been
beautifully designed to facilitate connections among residents and neighbors. OCII looks forward
to welcoming residents to Block 9 next year.”

Block 9 is a collaborative partnership between OCII, the San Francisco Department of
Homelessness and Supportive Housing (HSH), BRIDGE Housing, Community Housing
Partnership (CHP), and HealthRight 360. The development is employing factory-built housing
unit construction in an effort to expedite the delivery of housing for formerly homeless
individuals, and one of several City sponsored projects that is part of a factory-built housing pilot
program.

“Community Housing Partnership is proud to be a partner with the City and BRIDGE Housing to
create 140 permanent homes for people who have been experiencing homelessness,” said Rick
Aubry, CEO of Community Housing Partnership. “By providing a stable place to live coupled
with high quality supportive services, we can help people rebuild their lives, become self-
sufficient and break the cycle of homelessness.”

“Right now, it’s more important than ever for our most vulnerable neighbors to have a stable,
affordable place to live,” said Cynthia Parker, President and CEO of BRIDGE Housing. “We're
excited to see the building rise quickly with modular construction, and we're proud to partner on
these new apartments that will end homelessness for many San Franciscans.”

Major financing for Block 9 was provided by a $37.2 million investment from OCII that enabled
the $86.7 million project to move forward, as well as a state and federal Low-Income Housing
Tax Credit equity and a loan from the Federal Home Loan Bank Affordable Housing program.
The units will be supported through a City-funded Local Operating Subsidy Program contract
and homeless applicants will be referred to the development through the HSH Coordinated Entry
System.
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COVID-19 economy emerges more equitable and resilient than before. Pursuing the
development of 140 units of new affordable housing for San Francisco’s most vulnerable
residents makes progress on several recommendations made by the Economic Recovery Task
Force and illustrates the City’s efforts to retain and support its residents. Block 9 is part of
Mayor Breed’s Homelessness Recovery Plan, which will expand capacity in the City’s
Homelessness Response System and make 6,000 placements available for people experiencing
homelessness over the next two years.

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

“This housing project is not only going to give 140 people formerly experiencing
homelessness a safe and stable place to call home, it’s also going to enrich our Mission Bay
community,” said Supervisor Matt Haney. “Mission Bay is a wonderful place to build a
community that is for everyone in our city.”

The Mission Bay Project Area has seen many uses in its past, from warehouses and industrial
facilities to the former Southern Pacific Railyard. Today it is one of San Francisco’s newest
mixed-use, transit-oriented developments, and upon completion will have approximately 6,500
housing units, of which 1,900 are affordable. The Mission Bay project is anticipated to wrap
up over the next five to ten years and result in the construction of more than $700 million of
new infrastructure, over $8 billion in private vertical development, and the creation of more
than 30,000 permanent jobs.

“We know that housing is the solution to homelessness,” said Abigail Stewart-Kahn, Interim
Director, San Francisco Department of Housing and Supportive Housing. “Permanent
Supportive Housing is a critical component of the Mayor’s Homelessness Recovery Plan and
the key to eradicating chronic homelessness in our community.”

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
beautifully designed to facilitate connections among residents and neighbors. OCII looks
forward to welcoming residents to Block 9 next year.”

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
individuals, and one of several City sponsored projects that is part of a factory-built housing
pilot program.

“Community Housing Partnership is proud to be a partner with the City and BRIDGE Housing
to create 140 permanent homes for people who have been experiencing homelessness,” said
Rick Aubry, CEO of Community Housing Partnership. “By providing a stable place to live
coupled with high quality supportive services, we can help people rebuild their lives, become
self-sufficient and break the cycle of homelessness.”



“Right now, it’s more important than ever for our most vulnerable neighbors to have a stable,
affordable place to live,” said Cynthia Parker, President and CEO of BRIDGE Housing.
“We're excited to see the building rise quickly with modular construction, and we're proud to
partner on these new apartments that will end homelessness for many San Franciscans.”

Major financing for Block 9 was provided by a $37.2 million investment from OCII that
enabled the $86.7 million project to move forward, as well as a state and federal Low-Income
Housing Tax Credit equity and a loan from the Federal Home Loan Bank Affordable Housing
program. The units will be supported through a City-funded Local Operating Subsidy Program
contract and homeless applicants will be referred to the development through the HSH
Coordinated Entry System.
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{orin Jonas (CPCY; Son, Chanbory (CPC); CPC-Commissions Secrtary
:

HPC Novernber 18, 2020 22016-01315658V

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear Mr. Tonin,

Good evening.

1.did not realize until a few hours ago that the Resource Survey would be at the HPC tomorrow. T had written last week to Ms. Boudreaux about Barrel-Front Mediterrancan Revival homes, examples of which are below. Writing to her was prompted by learning that an Art Deco Facade at 477 Duncan is being
upgraded to “A” due apparently to the Mary Brown study of Sunset Residential Builders, but the building at 463 Duncan had been down-graded to a “C™ a back in 2017/2018 without Staff reference to the Study.

If you could possibly share these photos with the HPC tomorrow when I call i, 1 would be grateful.

Thanks much.

Sincerely,

Georgia
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Sent from my iPad
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



From: SchuT

To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC); Son, Chanbory (CPC

Cc: Boudreaux, Marcelle (CPC); CPC-Commissions Secretary
Subject: HPC November 18, 2020 #2016-013156SRN

Date: Tuesday, November 17, 2020 7:20:30 PM
Attachments: IMG 5974.PNG

IMG 5972.PNG
IMG 5973.PNG
IMG 5975.PNG

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Dear Mr. Ionin,

I am sending these photos for the Informational Hearing on the Resource Survey to be heard
tomorrow afternoon. I just learned about this item

If you could show these photos when I call in, I would be grateful. If not I understand the technical
complexities.

Thanks and take care.

Georgia

FAT Ehaahath §1
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES RALPH REMINGTON APPOINTED AS NEW
DIRECTOR OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS FOR THE SAN FRANCISCO ARTS COMMISSION

Date: Monday, November 16, 2020 12:53:37 PM

Attachments: 11.06.20 Director of Cultural Affairs Ralph Remington.pdf

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

Date: Friday, November 6, 2020 at 10:01 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES RALPH
REMINGTON APPOINTED AS NEW DIRECTOR OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS FOR THE
SAN FRANCISCO ARTS COMMISSION

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, November 6, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice(@sfgov.or

##% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES RALPH
REMINGTON APPOINTED AS NEW DIRECTOR OF
CULTURAL AFFAIRS FOR THE SAN FRANCISCO ARTS
COMMISSION

Remington will bring decades of leadership experience in the arts and a focus on equity,
diversity, and inclusion to the San Francisco Arts Commission

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced Ralph Remington has been
selected as the Director of Cultural Affairs for the San Francisco Arts Commission.
Remington was hired by the City following a comprehensive search led by the Arts
Commission. He will begin in January 2021.

The Director of Cultural Affairs leads the administration of the San Francisco Arts
Commission and directs citywide cultural activities in all aspects of the arts through programs,
special projects, grantmaking and policy-setting initiatives. The Director reports to the 15-
member, mayoral-appointed Arts Commission, which is responsible for the Civic Art
Collection, Civic Design Review, Cultural Equity Grants and other funding, public art, art
vendors, and seven cultural centers.

“San Francisco has been a national and international leader in championing artists and cultural
organizations in our city, and we’ve consistently prioritized equity and diversity in our
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, November 6, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*x* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES RALPH REMINGTON
APPOINTED AS NEW DIRECTOR OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
FOR THE SAN FRANCISCO ARTS COMMISSION

Remington will bring decades of leadership experience in the arts and a focus on equity,
diversity, and inclusion to the San Francisco Arts Commission

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced Ralph Remington has been
selected as the Director of Cultural Affairs for the San Francisco Arts Commission. Remington
was hired by the City following a comprehensive search led by the Arts Commission. He will
begin in January 2021.

The Director of Cultural Affairs leads the administration of the San Francisco Arts Commission
and directs citywide cultural activities in all aspects of the arts through programs, special
projects, grantmaking and policy-setting initiatives. The Director reports to the 15-member,
mayoral-appointed Arts Commission, which is responsible for the Civic Art Collection, Civic
Design Review, Cultural Equity Grants and other funding, public art, art vendors, and seven
cultural centers.

“San Francisco has been a national and international leader in championing artists and cultural
organizations in our city, and we’ve consistently prioritized equity and diversity in our programs
and through the arts,” said Mayor Breed. “Ralph has a long history of working in the arts, | know
he will ensure San Francisco’s diverse community of artists and cultural organizations are
supported and valued throughout this pandemic and beyond. The arts are what make

San Francisco such a vibrant and thriving city, and a place where people want to live and visit.
As we work to recover as a city from COVID-19, keeping up our support for the arts community
will help San Francisco rebound and come back even stronger than before.”

“We live in times that require bold fearless leadership around issues of arts and culture
interwoven with equity, diversity and inclusion,” said Ralph Remington. “I am thrilled for the
opportunity to work progressively with Mayor Breed and the San Francisco Arts Commission to
boldly further the path of equity, diversity and belonging in the City of San Francisco, one of the
world’s greatest arts and culture capitals.”

Remington has extensive professional experience in arts administration and government, and has

experience as an actor, playwright, and screenwriter. He currently serves as the Deputy Director

for Arts and Culture for the City of Tempe, Arizona. In that role, he is responsible for Tempe

Center for the Arts’ comprehensive performance and visual art programming, as well as

overseeing public art, the Tempe History Museum, arts engagement, and municipal arts granting.
1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200

SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
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He previously served as the former Western Regional Director and Assistant Executive Director
for Actors Equity Association in Los Angeles. Prior to that, he was Director of Theater and
Musical Theater at the National Endowment for the Arts (NEA) in Washington, D.C. In 2010, he
received the NEA Chairman’s Distinguished Service Award.

“We are so excited to welcome Ralph Remington to San Francisco to lead the Arts Commission
at this historic moment in time. In partnership with countless artists and arts and culture
organizations, our 90-year-old City agency has helped shape San Francisco’s cultural persona
and has cemented our reputation as a world-class city for art and creative innovations. | believe
in Ralph’s ability to harness the City’s resources and lead us into the future,” said Roberto
Ordefiana, President, San Francisco Arts Commission. “This pandemic presents incredible
challenges to the world and our sector in particular, and Ralph’s fresh perspectives and
incredible intersection of skills will help deploy strategies to keep the arts so very central to what
San Francisco values. | believe he will build strong relationships across multiple sectors and
bring his energy to lift up artists and cultural institutions to get us through these vulnerable times
with much creativity and fortitude.”

Prior to working at the NEA, Remington was a City Council member for the City of
Minneapolis. He is a former Guthrie Theater Acting Company member, and is the founding
Producing Artistic Director of award-winning Pillsbury House Theatre in South Minneapolis.
Remington has a Bachelor of Fine Arts in Drama from Howard University.

The Director of Cultural Affairs for the Arts Commission oversees the City’s extensive,
renowned collection of public art, the planning and implementation of grantmaking that supports
art of all disciplines, a gallery program and related public programs, as well as sustaining
affordable space for artists and organizations. In addition, the Director is responsible for working
with government agencies, community groups, philanthropy and cultural organizations to
coordinate activities and programs, and participate in the planning and implementation of arts
policy and funding.

The San Francisco Arts Commission is the City agency that champions the arts as essential to
daily life by investing in a vibrant arts community, enlivening the urban environment and
shaping innovative cultural policy. Learn more at: www.sfartscommission.org.

HiH

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141



http://www.sfartscommission.org/




programs and through the arts,” said Mayor Breed. “Ralph has a long history of working in the
arts, I know he will ensure San Francisco’s diverse community of artists and cultural
organizations are supported and valued throughout this pandemic and beyond. The arts are
what make San Francisco such a vibrant and thriving city, and a place where people want to
live and visit. As we work to recover as a city from COVID-19, keeping up our support for the
arts community will help San Francisco rebound and come back even stronger than before.”

“We live in times that require bold fearless leadership around issues of arts and culture
interwoven with equity, diversity and inclusion,” said Ralph Remington. “I am thrilled for the
opportunity to work progressively with Mayor Breed and the San Francisco Arts Commission
to boldly further the path of equity, diversity and belonging in the City of San Francisco, one
of the world’s greatest arts and culture capitals.”

Remington has extensive professional experience in arts administration and government, and
has experience as an actor, playwright, and screenwriter. He currently serves as the Deputy
Director for Arts and Culture for the City of Tempe, Arizona. In that role, he is responsible for
Tempe Center for the Arts’ comprehensive performance and visual art programming, as well
as overseeing public art, the Tempe History Museum, arts engagement, and municipal arts
granting. He previously served as the former Western Regional Director and Assistant
Executive Director for Actors Equity Association in Los Angeles. Prior to that, he was
Director of Theater and Musical Theater at the National Endowment for the Arts (NEA) in
Washington, D.C. In 2010, he received the NEA Chairman’s Distinguished Service Award.

“We are so excited to welcome Ralph Remington to San Francisco to lead the Arts
Commission at this historic moment in time. In partnership with countless artists and arts and
culture organizations, our 90-year-old City agency has helped shape San Francisco’s cultural
persona and has cemented our reputation as a world-class city for art and creative innovations.
I believe in Ralph’s ability to harness the City’s resources and lead us into the future,” said
Roberto Ordefiana, President, San Francisco Arts Commission. “This pandemic presents
incredible challenges to the world and our sector in particular, and Ralph’s fresh perspectives
and incredible intersection of skills will help deploy strategies to keep the arts so very central
to what San Francisco values. I believe he will build strong relationships across multiple
sectors and bring his energy to lift up artists and cultural institutions to get us through these
vulnerable times with much creativity and fortitude.”

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
renowned collection of public art, the planning and implementation of grantmaking that
supports art of all disciplines, a gallery program and related public programs, as well as
sustaining affordable space for artists and organizations. In addition, the Director is
responsible for working with government agencies, community groups, philanthropy and
cultural organizations to coordinate activities and programs, and participate in the planning
and implementation of arts policy and funding.

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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO ROLL BACK SELECT ACTIVITIES IN RESPONSE TO
ASSIGNMENT TO STATE’S RED TIER

Date: Monday, November 16, 2020 12:26:43 PM

Attachments: 11.16.20 COVID-19 Update.pdf

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

Date: Monday, November 16, 2020 at 12:26 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO ROLL BACK SELECT
ACTIVITIES IN RESPONSE TO ASSIGNMENT TO STATE’S RED TIER

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, November 16, 2020
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org

##% PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO TO ROLL BACK SELECT ACTIVITIES IN
RESPONSE TO ASSIGNMENT TO STATE’S RED TIER

Due to a rapid increase in COVID-19 cases across the City and State, San Francisco will roll
back non-essential offices and reduce capacity of gyms and fitness centers

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax
today announced the City will adjust its reopening of businesses and activities due to the
continued increase in COVID-19 cases in San Francisco, which has resulted in the State
placing the City in the more restrictive Red Tier. San Francisco will temporarily roll back the
reopening of all non-essential offices and will reduce the capacity of fitness centers and gyms
to a maximum capacity of 10%. These changes will go into effect on Tuesday, November 17,
2020.

San Francisco is rolling back these activities in compliance with the California’s Blueprint for
a Safer Economy tier assignments. San Francisco, the Bay Area, and California continue to
experience a rapid and significant increase in COVID-19 cases. To adapt to the widespread
rise in cases, the State has notified the counties that it is changing its reopening tier
assignments. On Monday, 41 of the 58 counties will be assigned to the most restrictive Purple
Tier, which prohibits many business and activities. The State has assigned San Francisco from
the least restrictive Yellow Tier, where virus transmission is minimal, to the more restrictive
Red Tier, where virus transmission is substantial.
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

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax today
announced the City will adjust its reopening of businesses and activities due to the continued
increase in COVID-19 cases in San Francisco, which has resulted in the State placing the City in
the more restrictive Red Tier. San Francisco will temporarily roll back the reopening of all non-
essential offices and will reduce the capacity of fitness centers and gyms to a maximum capacity
of 10%. These changes will go into effect on Tuesday, November 17, 2020.

San Francisco is rolling back these activities in compliance with the California’s Blueprint for a
Safer Economy tier assignments. San Francisco, the Bay Area, and California continue to
experience a rapid and significant increase in COVID-19 cases. To adapt to the widespread rise
in cases, the State has notified the counties that it is changing its reopening tier assignments. On
Monday, 41 of the 58 counties will be assigned to the most restrictive Purple Tier, which
prohibits many business and activities. The State has assigned San Francisco from the least
restrictive Yellow Tier, where virus transmission is minimal, to the more restrictive Red Tier,
where virus transmission is substantial.

“The increased rate of new COVID-19 cases in San Francisco means that we need to make some
additional adjustments to slow the spread of the virus in our community. We need to make these
hard choices now so that we can save lives and keep our healthcare system from becoming
overwhelmed,” said Mayor Breed. “In addition to these rollbacks, we need everyone to do their
part to get COVID-19 under control, especially as we go into the holiday season. | know that
people want to spend time with their family and friends this Thanksgiving, but this year we need
to all stay home as much as possible, avoid unnecessary travel, and avoid gathering with people
who don’t live with us. | know it’s difficult, but it’s an important step we can each take to stay
safe and protect the health of our entire community.”

The rolling back of certain businesses and activities is required by the State now that

San Francisco has been assigned to the Red Tier. Due to its deliberate and strategic approach to
reopening, San Francisco had only reopened a small number of activities allowed in the Orange
Tier and only these activities are required to roll back. Non-essential offices which had been
opened to 25% capacity on October 27" will need to close, and fitness centers will need to
reduce their capacity to 10%, down from 25% capacity.
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“San Francisco is in the midst of a major surge, and as we are seeing in communities across the
country, it is moving aggressively,” said Dr. Grant Colfax. “Together, we have beaten back the
virus twice before and we can do it again by taking the proper precautions. We must take every
possible precaution to protect ourselves, our families and our community. Do not travel this
holiday season. The choices we make in the next two weeks will save lives and determine the
remainder of this holiday season. COVID-19 is not resting and neither can we.”

San Francisco is currently experiencing a surge in new cases rates. One of the key indicators of
COVID-19 prevalence in the city, the number of new cases per day per 100,000 people,
continues to climb from a low of 3.7 cases per 100,000 people to more than 10 cases per 100,000
people this week. From October 10 to November 10, daily new COVID cases jumped from a 7-
day average of 29 cases per day to 97 cases per day.

San Francisco’s increase in cases is significant but not unique. California has seen a significant
increase in new positive cases over the last week and many counties have been re-assigned to
more restrictive tiers on the State’s system. Because of the widespread rise in cases, the State has
notified the counties that it is changing its tier reassignment assignment in order to respond to
changes in health indicators more immediately. Before this change, a county had to be in a tier
for two consecutive weeks before the State re-assigned it to a more restrictive tier. Now a county
will only need to be in that more restrictive tier for one week. Because of this change,

San Francisco is moving from the least restrictive Yellow Tier to the Red Tier after only one
week.

The following activities will halt indoor operations until further notice:
e Non-essential offices. Offices will have to return to 100% remote and telework
operations.

The following activities will be required to reduce indoor capacity:
e Fitness centers (including gyms, hotel fitness facilities, and climbing walls) may remain
open at 10% capacity.

All other businesses and activities that are currently allowed may continue operating this time
within current applicable guidelines, including outdoor gyms and fitness centers, outdoor dining
and take-out, elementary and middle schools, retail shopping, personal services, and cultural and
family activities such as museums and aquariums.

The Department of Public Health will continue to closely monitor the City’s case count,
infection rate, and hospitalization rate in order to determine if additional activities need to be
rolled back in order to contain the outbreak of the virus. The Department of Public Health
released a Travel Advisory on November 12, urging San Franciscans to refrain from travelling
outside of the county and recommending a 14-day quarantine for those who do choose to travel.
As cases continue to climb throughout California and the rest of the country, this advisory is
even more important to follow. The City strongly encourages San Franciscans to avoid
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gatherings, wear face coverings when leaving home, and keep their distance from other people,
and to get tested for COVID-19 if they feel sick.

More information about San Francisco’s reopening timeline can be found at https://sf.gov/step-
by-step/reopening-san-francisco.

HiH
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“The increased rate of new COVID-19 cases in San Francisco means that we need to make
some additional adjustments to slow the spread of the virus in our community. We need to
make these hard choices now so that we can save lives and keep our healthcare system from
becoming overwhelmed,” said Mayor Breed. “In addition to these rollbacks, we need
everyone to do their part to get COVID-19 under control, especially as we go into the holiday
season. I know that people want to spend time with their family and friends this Thanksgiving,
but this year we need to all stay home as much as possible, avoid unnecessary travel, and
avoid gathering with people who don’t live with us. I know it’s difficult, but it’s an important
step we can each take to stay safe and protect the health of our entire community.”

The rolling back of certain businesses and activities is required by the State now that

San Francisco has been assigned to the Red Tier. Due to its deliberate and strategic approach
to reopening, San Francisco had only reopened a small number of activities allowed in the
Orange Tier and only these activities are required to roll back. Non-essential offices which had

been opened to 25% capacity on October 27" will need to close, and fitness centers will need
to reduce their capacity to 10%, down from 25% capacity.

“San Francisco is in the midst of a major surge, and as we are seeing in communities across
the country, it is moving aggressively,” said Dr. Grant Colfax. “Together, we have beaten
back the virus twice before and we can do it again by taking the proper precautions. We must
take every possible precaution to protect ourselves, our families and our community. Do not
travel this holiday season. The choices we make in the next two weeks will save lives and
determine the remainder of this holiday season. COVID-19 is not resting and neither can we.”

San Francisco is currently experiencing a surge in new cases rates. One of the key indicators
of COVID-19 prevalence in the city, the number of new cases per day per 100,000 people,
continues to climb from a low of 3.7 cases per 100,000 people to more than 10 cases per
100,000 people this week. From October 10 to November 10, daily new COVID cases jumped
from a 7-day average of 29 cases per day to 97 cases per day.

San Francisco’s increase in cases is significant but not unique. California has seen a
significant increase in new positive cases over the last week and many counties have been re-
assigned to more restrictive tiers on the State’s system. Because of the widespread rise in
cases, the State has notified the counties that it is changing its tier reassignment assignment in
order to respond to changes in health indicators more immediately. Before this change, a
county had to be in a tier for two consecutive weeks before the State re-assigned it to a more
restrictive tier. Now a county will only need to be in that more restrictive tier for one week.
Because of this change, San Francisco is moving from the least restrictive Yellow Tier to the
Red Tier after only one week.

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
¢ Fitness centers (including gyms, hotel fitness facilities, and climbing walls) may remain
open at 10% capacity.

All other businesses and activities that are currently allowed may continue operating this time
within current applicable guidelines, including outdoor gyms and fitness centers, outdoor
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dining and take-out, elementary and middle schools, retail shopping, personal services, and
cultural and family activities such as museums and aquariums.

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
outside of the county and recommending a 14-day quarantine for those who do choose to
travel. As cases continue to climb throughout California and the rest of the country, this
advisory is even more important to follow. The City strongly encourages San Franciscans to
avoid gatherings, wear face coverings when leaving home, and keep their distance from other
people, and to get tested for COVID-19 if they feel sick.

More information about San Francisco’s reopening timeline can be found at
https://st.gov/step-by-step/reopening-san-francisco.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO REALLOCATES TESTING RESOURCES TO SERVE
NEIGHBORHOODS MOST IMPACTED BY COVID-19

Date: Monday, November 16, 2020 12:17:34 PM

Attachments: 11.16.20 CityTestSF Alemany.pdf

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

Date: Monday, November 16, 2020 at 9:51 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO REALLOCATES TESTING
RESOURCES TO SERVE NEIGHBORHOODS MOST IMPACTED BY COVID-19

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, November 16, 2020
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org

##% PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO REALLOCATES TESTING RESOURCES TO

SERVE NEIGHBORHOODS MOST IMPACTED BY COVID-19

Beginning on Tuesday, November 17, the City will offer free, low-barrier testing fives day
week at Alemany Farmer’s Market

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax
today announced the CityTestSF COVID-19 testing site at the Alemany Farmer’s Market will
open tomorrow, Tuesday, November 17. CityTestSF resources are being reallocated from the
SoMa testing site to the Alemany Farmer’s Market as part of the City’s strategic testing
program.

CityTestSF at Alemany Farmer’s Market will operate five days a week with the capacity to
test as many as 500 people a day, which is the same testing capacity previously provided at the
SoMa site. The City’s testing program is designed to serve the populations and neighborhoods
that are most highly impacted by the virus. The southeast sector of San Francisco carries a
disproportionate virus burden and the reallocation of these 500 tests to that part of the city is a
critical component for fighting the spread of the virus.

“Equity has been a priority for us throughout the pandemic, and part of having an equitable
citywide response to COVID means that we direct our resources where there’s the most need,”
said Mayor Breed. “With the CityTestSF site at Alemany, we’re making testing even easier for
people to access right in their own neighborhood.”
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

Beginning on Tuesday, November 17, the City will offer free, low-barrier testing fives day week
at Alemany Farmer’s Market

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax today
announced the CityTestSF COVID-19 testing site at the Alemany Farmer’s Market will open
tomorrow, Tuesday, November 17. CityTestSF resources are being reallocated from the SoMa
testing site to the Alemany Farmer’s Market as part of the City’s strategic testing program.

CityTestSF at Alemany Farmer’s Market will operate five days a week with the capacity to test
as many as 500 people a day, which is the same testing capacity previously provided at the SoMa
site. The City’s testing program is designed to serve the populations and neighborhoods that are
most highly impacted by the virus. The southeast sector of San Francisco carries a
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

Since the onset of the pandemic, San Francisco moved quickly and aggressively to establish a
robust public COVID-19 testing program, with partners Color and Carbon Health. San Francisco
currently tests more than 5,800 people each day, which is the highest rate among Bay Area
counties. In addition to the two CityTestSF sites, the City continues to provide testing in the
neighborhoods and for the populations most impacted by the virus. Through pop-up community
testing sites, in partnership with community organizations and Color, the City has served two
neighborhoods a day with testing resources. Additionally, the Department of Public Health has
expanded testing at its community clinics and has partnered with the state on a testing site at the
City College Bayview campus.

“We have to adapt our strategy to where the need is greatest and locating more high-capacity,
low barrier testing to the most impacted part of the city is the smart strategy,” said Dr. Colfax.
“As we experience a surge in cases in the city, the region and the nation, we must manage our
public testing resources in the most efficient ways possible to slow the spread of the virus. Re-
allocating these testing resources to the area of the city with highest rate of infection is critical to
our response to the virus.”
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The collaboration with Color and Carbon Health has enabled the City to quickly stand up testing
sites where they are needed most, streamline scheduling and sample collection, distribute and
track test Kits, and efficiently return results to individuals and the Department of Public Health.
Color has helped San Francisco become a national leader in turnaround time with 86% of results
returned in less than 24 hours and 99% in less than 48 hours.

“Our partnership with San Francisco has helped to create a model for the rest of the country to
follow,” said Othman Laraki, CEO, Color. “Since we began working together in April, we are
providing nearly 4,000 tests a day by building a testing program that’s easy for anyone in San
Francisco to access, simple to navigate, and will dependably return results in less than 24 hours.
This program is the foundation of a strong public health response and critical to managing the
virus in communities most affected.”

San Francisco has the highest testing rate per capita of any other city in the United States. The
City currently administers and funds 55 percent of all COVID-19 tests conducted in San
Francisco, with the intention of testing people most at risk for COVID-19. CityTestSF prioritizes
testing for essential workers and residents who have symptoms or who have been exposed to the
virus. If you have insurance, schedule a test with your doctor.

During this current surge, city resources will not support testing for travel or visitations. Tests
are set aside for essential workers, close contacts identified through contract tracing, and for the
City’s first responders. Appointments are released on a rolling basis.

The Alemany CityTestSF low-barrier testing facility, located on 100 Alemany Boulevard, will
provide COVID-19 testing five days per week, with both walk-through and drive-through tests.
Appointments can be scheduled online at sf.gov/gettestedsf and residents or essential workers
without appointments are welcome.

The hours of Alemany CityTestSF are:
e Monday: 12:30 p.m. - 4:30 p.m.
e Tuesday - Thursday: 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.
e Friday: 8:30 a.m. - 12:30 p.m.

Testing is a part of the City’s COVID-19 response, but every San Franciscan must also focus on
prevention. The most important things that every person can do to slow the spread of the virus
are: wear a face covering outside their homes; avoid gathering with people outside your
household; continue to stay home as much as possible; stay six feet apart from others when not
home; and always wash hands frequently.

If you have symptoms or have been exposed, you should get tested. If you have insurance, call
your doctor first. For more information on testing options, please visit: sf.gov/gettestedsf.

HiH
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Since the onset of the pandemic, San Francisco moved quickly and aggressively to establish a
robust public COVID-19 testing program, with partners Color and Carbon Health. San
Francisco currently tests more than 5,800 people each day, which is the highest rate among
Bay Area counties. In addition to the two CityTestSF sites, the City continues to provide
testing in the neighborhoods and for the populations most impacted by the virus. Through pop-
up community testing sites, in partnership with community organizations and Color, the City
has served two neighborhoods a day with testing resources. Additionally, the Department of
Public Health has expanded testing at its community clinics and has partnered with the state
on a testing site at the City College Bayview campus.

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
allocating these testing resources to the area of the city with highest rate of infection is critical
to our response to the virus.”

The collaboration with Color and Carbon Health has enabled the City to quickly stand up
testing sites where they are needed most, streamline scheduling and sample collection,
distribute and track test kits, and efficiently return results to individuals and the Department of
Public Health. Color has helped San Francisco become a national leader in turnaround time
with 86% of results returned in less than 24 hours and 99% in less than 48 hours.

“Our partnership with San Francisco has helped to create a model for the rest of the country to
follow,” said Othman Laraki, CEO, Color. “Since we began working together in April, we are
providing nearly 4,000 tests a day by building a testing program that’s easy for anyone in San
Francisco to access, simple to navigate, and will dependably return results in less than 24
hours. This program is the foundation of a strong public health response and critical to
managing the virus in communities most affected.”

San Francisco has the highest testing rate per capita of any other city in the United States. The
City currently administers and funds 55 percent of all COVID-19 tests conducted in San
Francisco, with the intention of testing people most at risk for COVID-19.

CityTestSF prioritizes testing for essential workers and residents who have symptoms or who
have been exposed to the virus. If you have insurance, schedule a test with your doctor.

During this current surge, city resources will not support testing for travel or visitations. Tests
are set aside for essential workers, close contacts identified through contract tracing, and for
the City’s first responders. Appointments are released on a rolling basis.

The Alemany CityTestSF low-barrier testing facility, located on 100 Alemany Boulevard, will
provide COVID-19 testing five days per week, with both walk-through and drive-through
tests. Appointments can be scheduled online at sf.gov/gettestedsf and residents or essential
workers without appointments are welcome.

The hours of Alemany CityTestSF are:
e Monday: 12:30 p.m. - 4:30 p.m.
e Tuesday - Thursday: 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.
e Friday: 8:30 a.m. - 12:30 p.m.
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Testing is a part of the City’s COVID-19 response, but every San Franciscan must also focus
on prevention. The most important things that every person can do to slow the spread of the
virus are: wear a face covering outside their homes; avoid gathering with people outside your
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
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Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE ELECTION OF JOE BIDEN AND KAMALA HARRIS
Date: Friday, November 13, 2020 11:07:48 AM

Attachments: 11.07.20 Presidential Election.pdf

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

Date: Saturday, November 7, 2020 at 8:47 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE ELECTION OF JOE
BIDEN AND KAMALA HARRIS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Saturday, November 7, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

**%* STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE ELECTION OF JOE
BIDEN AND KAMALA HARRIS

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today issued the following statement
following the election of Joe Biden and Kamala Harris as the next President and Vice
President of the United States.

“Joe Biden ran on the simple but powerful idea that we should strive to be a united country,
not a divided one. As president, he has promised to represent everyone, not just those who
voted for him, and he will put the needs of the American people first. I am so proud that this
country chose leadership, decency, and compassion in our next President.

With this election, we also made history by choosing Kamala Harris as our Vice-President.
For the first time, millions and millions of Americans chose a black woman to help lead this
country. The pride I feel as a black woman is hard to put into words. Kamala Harris is a friend
and mentor, but most importantly, she is an inspiration to so many of us all across this country.
While Kamala’s path to Washington has been her own unique journey, she is just as sure
bringing the hopes and dreams of so many little girls with her. I only wish my grandmother, a
daughter of slaves and sharecroppers, a woman who raised me to believe that we can all work
to make the world a better place, were still alive to see this day.

These results have shown us how close these elections are, and how much every single vote
matters. All across this country, more people than in any other election in our history took to
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Saturday, November 7, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*xx STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE ELECTION OF JOE BIDEN
AND KAMALA HARRIS

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today issued the following statement following
the election of Joe Biden and Kamala Harris as the next President and Vice President of the
United States.

“Joe Biden ran on the simple but powerful idea that we should strive to be a united country, not a
divided one. As president, he has promised to represent everyone, not just those who voted for
him, and he will put the needs of the American people first. I am so proud that this country chose
leadership, decency, and compassion in our next President.

With this election, we also made history by choosing Kamala Harris as our Vice-President. For
the first time, millions and millions of Americans chose a black woman to help lead this country.
The pride | feel as a black woman is hard to put into words. Kamala Harris is a friend and
mentor, but most importantly, she is an inspiration to so many of us all across this country. While
Kamala’s path to Washington has been her own unique journey, she is just as sure bringing the
hopes and dreams of so many little girls with her. I only wish my grandmother, a daughter of
slaves and sharecroppers, a woman who raised me to believe that we can all work to make the
world a better place, were still alive to see this day.

These results have shown us how close these elections are, and how much every single vote
matters. All across this country, more people than in any other election in our history took to the
cast their vote to fight for our democracy. We overcame decades of sinister efforts to suppress
the vote. We overcame the cynicism that too often dissuades people from voting because they
think their voice doesn’t matter. With this election, we have shown not only that our voices
matter, but they have the power to change the course of history.

We’ve got a lot of work to do, and we have hard days ahead of us, but tomorrow will be a little
lighter and the days to come will be a whole lot brighter. Today, | have real hope for the future of
our country.”

HiH
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the cast their vote to fight for our democracy. We overcame decades of sinister efforts to
suppress the vote. We overcame the cynicism that too often dissuades people from voting
because they think their voice doesn’t matter. With this election, we have shown not only that
our voices matter, but they have the power to change the course of history.

We’ve got a lot of work to do, and we have hard days ahead of us, but tomorrow will be a

little lighter and the days to come will be a whole lot brighter. Today, I have real hope for the
future of our country.”
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO BEGINS REHOUSING VULNERABLE HOMELESS MOVED INTO
HOTELS AS PART OF COVID-19 RESPONSE

Date: Friday, November 13, 2020 11:03:21 AM

Attachments: 11.09.20 Shelter In Place Rehousing Plan.pdf

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

Date: Monday, November 9, 2020 at 3:46 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO BEGINS REHOUSING
VULNERABLE HOMELESS MOVED INTO HOTELS AS PART OF COVID-19
RESPONSE

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, November 9, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice(@sfgov.or

##% PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO BEGINS REHOUSING VULNERABLE
HOMELESS MOVED INTO HOTELS AS PART OF COVID-19
RESPONSE

Working with community partners, Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing
initiates first phase of plan to eventually move 2,300 people out of hotels and into stable
housing solutions, ensuring that people exit into stability and not the street

San Francisco, CA — San Francisco’s Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing
(HSH) and non-profit partner agencies have begun a concerted effort to identify stable longer-
term housing solutions for individuals currently staying in hotels as part of San Francisco’s
COVID-19 response. Care Coordinators have started the first phase of engagement with
households in an initial set of hotels, and the City and service provider staff have begun
executing transitions for households, with several guests receiving keys to their new housing
this past week.

For the last seven months, the City of San Francisco has directly faced the challenges of the
COVID-19 pandemic by working with local, state and national agencies to provide care and
resources for the City’s vulnerable populations.

In March, a shelter-in-place order was issued by the San Francisco Department of Public
Health (SFDPH) due to the community spread of COVID-19. The City of San Francisco
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
initiates first phase of plan to eventually move 2,300 people out of hotels and into stable housing
solutions, ensuring that people exit into stability and not the street

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
executing transitions for households, with several guests receiving keys to their new housing this
past week.

For the last seven months, the City of San Francisco has directly faced the challenges of the
COVID-19 pandemic by working with local, state and national agencies to provide care and
resources for the City’s vulnerable populations.

In March, a shelter-in-place order was issued by the San Francisco Department of Public Health
(SFDPH) due to the community spread of COVID-19. The City of San Francisco activated the
first Shelter-in-Place (SIP) hotel in April, providing a safe place for individuals who were at the
highest risk for severe disease. Over the intervening 6 months, the City expanded the emergency
SIP program to include 29 SIP hotel sites. Thanks to the hard work of City Departments and non-
profit partners, San Francisco opened and filled nearly 20% of the hotel rooms under the state’s
Project Roomkey, despite San Francisco only having 5% of the state’s homeless population.

“Moving thousands of people into hotels was a monumental task that took incredible efforts from
city workers and our non-profits partners, and now we need to bring that same focus to move
people into stable housing,” said Mayor Breed. “Our hotel program was always temporary, but
we are committed to ensuring that no one ends up on the street. COVID has presented us with
many challenges, but we will continue to do the work necessary to meet the needs of the impacts
of this pandemic on our City and our residents.”

Over the coming months, as part of the SIP Rehousing Plan, the City and HSH are planning to

offer rehousing options to over 2,300 guests sheltering in place at SIP hotels. Phase One of this

Plan, which is in process, will focus on offering rehousing to more than 500 guests at 7 SIP

hotels over the coming weeks. The Fiscal Year 2020-21 and 2021-22 budget provides funding,
1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
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reliant on Proposition C and other state and General Fund sources, to allow for a gradual wind
down of the hotel program, with people being moved out in phases, with the remaining guests
being rehoused by the end of June.

As part of the SIP Rehousing Plan, Care Coordinators from the HSH-funded service providers
and HSH staff are meeting with SIP guests, conducting assessments, and matching them to more
sustainable housing resources. This work has begun, and it will be challenging due to the unique
impacts and continued evolution of COVID-19. The process will include continuous evaluation
and adjustments to allow for the plan to be improved and adapted based on learnings from each
phase to ensure successful outcomes for people.

“Under Mayor London Breed’s leadership, the City has never been more committed to ending
Homelessness,” said Abigail Stewart-Kahn, Interim Director, San Francisco Department of
Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “Together, we will realize our goal of exiting anyone
who came inside during this crisis to stability.”

About the San Francisco Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing (HSH)

San Francisco is a pioneer in homeless services and a leader in providing supportive housing as a
permanent exit from homelessness. The San Francisco Department of Homelessness and
Supportive Housing (HSH) strives to make homelessness rare, brief and one time and seeks to be
a national leader in the movement to end homelessness through a Homeless Response System
comprising a coordinated, client-focused system of services, piloting innovative models, and
implementing proven solutions with measurable results. Major programs include: street outreach
and service connection through the Homeless Outreach Team; a robust shelter system for single
adults and families including shelters for members of the LGBT community and survivors of
domestic violence; Navigation Centers that provide temporary shelter for individuals and couples
using a low-threshold model; rapid rehousing rental subsidies for families, adults, seniors and
transitional aged youth; the Homeward Bound program which has helped 10,000 individuals
return to stable housing in their city of origin; and robust supportive housing programs of nearly
7,500 units which provide permanent housing and services to formerly homeless individuals and
families.

About the City’s COVID-19 Alternative Housing:

The City has established a variety of COVID-19 Alternative Housing options, including private
hotels, congregate sites, trailers and recreational vehicles (RVs). Many sites have on-site medical
and behavioral health staff as needed for guests. Public health and human service officials assess
and determine the most appropriate housing option and on-site services to meet the needs of the
different populations. Additional information can be found on the City’s COVID-19 Alternative
Housing Dashboard: https://data.sfgov.org/stories/s/COVID-19-Alternative-Housing/4nah-suat/

About The Mayor’s Homelessness Recovery Plan

In July 2020, Mayor Breed announced a plan to fund a Homelessness Recovery Plan. Through

the Homelessness Recovery Plan, the City will expand capacity in the Homelessness Response

System and will make 6,000 placements available for people experiencing homelessness,

including 4,500 placements in Permanent Supportive Housing. This includes acquiring or leasing
1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
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1,500 new units of Permanent Supportive Housing in the next two years, the largest one-time
expansion in the City in 20 years.

HiH
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activated the first Shelter-in-Place (SIP) hotel in April, providing a safe place for individuals
who were at the highest risk for severe disease. Over the intervening 6 months, the City
expanded the emergency SIP program to include 29 SIP hotel sites. Thanks to the hard work
of City Departments and non-profit partners, San Francisco opened and filled nearly 20% of
the hotel rooms under the state’s Project Roomkey, despite San Francisco only having 5% of
the state’s homeless population.

“Moving thousands of people into hotels was a monumental task that took incredible efforts
from city workers and our non-profits partners, and now we need to bring that same focus to
move people into stable housing,” said Mayor Breed. “Our hotel program was always
temporary, but we are committed to ensuring that no one ends up on the street. COVID has
presented us with many challenges, but we will continue to do the work necessary to meet the
needs of the impacts of this pandemic on our City and our residents.”

Over the coming months, as part of the SIP Rehousing Plan, the City and HSH are planning to
offer rehousing options to over 2,300 guests sheltering in place at SIP hotels. Phase One of
this Plan, which is in process, will focus on offering rehousing to more than 500 guests at 7
SIP hotels over the coming weeks. The Fiscal Year 2020-21 and 2021-22 budget provides
funding, reliant on Proposition C and other state and General Fund sources, to allow for a
gradual wind down of the hotel program, with people being moved out in phases, with the
remaining guests being rehoused by the end of June.

As part of the SIP Rehousing Plan, Care Coordinators from the HSH-funded service providers
and HSH staff are meeting with SIP guests, conducting assessments, and matching them to
more sustainable housing resources. This work has begun, and it will be challenging due to the
unique impacts and continued evolution of COVID-19. The process will include continuous
evaluation and adjustments to allow for the plan to be improved and adapted based on
learnings from each phase to ensure successful outcomes for people.

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
San Francisco is a pioneer in homeless services and a leader in providing supportive housing
as a permanent exit from homelessness. The San Francisco Department of Homelessness and
Supportive Housing (HSH) strives to make homelessness rare, brief and one time and seeks to
be a national leader in the movement to end homelessness through a Homeless Response
System comprising a coordinated, client-focused system of services, piloting innovative
models, and implementing proven solutions with measurable results. Major programs include:
street outreach and service connection through the Homeless Outreach Team; a robust shelter
system for single adults and families including shelters for members of the LGBT community
and survivors of domestic violence; Navigation Centers that provide temporary shelter for
individuals and couples using a low-threshold model; rapid rehousing rental subsidies for
families, adults, seniors and transitional aged youth; the Homeward Bound program which has
helped 10,000 individuals return to stable housing in their city of origin; and robust supportive
housing programs of nearly 7,500 units which provide permanent housing and services to
formerly homeless individuals and families.



About the City’s COVID-19 Alternative Housing:

The City has established a variety of COVID-19 Alternative Housing options, including
private hotels, congregate sites, trailers and recreational vehicles (RVs). Many sites have on-
site medical and behavioral health staff as needed for guests. Public health and human service
officials assess and determine the most appropriate housing option and on-site services to meet
the needs of the different populations. Additional information can be found on the City’s
COVID-19 Alternative Housing Dashboard: https://data.sfgov.org/stories/s/COVID-19-

Alternative-Housing/4nah-suat/

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
including 4,500 placements in Permanent Supportive Housing. This includes acquiring or
leasing 1,500 new units of Permanent Supportive Housing in the next two years, the largest
one-time expansion in the City in 20 years.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - CP TEAM (TAC - Preservation); Rich Hillis
Subject: HPC Calendars for November 18, 2020

Date: Friday, November 13, 2020 10:35:19 AM

Attachments: 20201118 hpc.pdf

20201118 hpc.docx
HPC Advance - 20201118.xIsx
HPC Hearing Results 2020.docx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for November 18, 2020.

Cheers,

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
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REMOTE HEARING

via video and teleconferencing

Wednesday, November 18, 2020
12:30 p.m.
Regular Meeting

Commissioners:
Aaron Hyland, President
Diane Matsuda, Vice President
Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns,
Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So

Commission Secretary:
Jonas P. lonin

Hearing Materials are available at:
Website: http://www.sfplanning.org
Planning Department, 49 South Van Ness, 14t Floor

Commission Hearing Broadcasts:
Live stream: https://www.sfgovtv.org/planning

Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance.
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Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the
City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City
operations are open to the people's review.

For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415)
554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San
Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

Privacy Policy
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act

and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit
to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may
inspect or copy.

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist

Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about
the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415)
252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday
through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at
the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.

Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6,9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services,
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.

Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.

Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations,
please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.

Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589), or
commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.

Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.

SPANISH: Agenda para la Comision de Preservacion de Edificios y Lugares Histdricos (Historic Preservation Commission). Si desea asistirala
audiencia, y quisiera obtener informacién en Espafiol o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo
menos 48 horas de anticipacion a la audiencia.

CHINESE: JFE o R B &5 fE . BB e LU ERE S Bhal E R Bk i, S530E(628) 652-7589., m LB er ST 2 IR
/D ag i /INFERR H R

TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o
para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag
nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.

RUSSIAN: NoBecTka gHA KoMmmccum no 3awmTe NnaMaTHUKOB MCTOPMM. 3a MOMOLLbIO MEPEBOAYMKA UM 3@ BCTIOMOTraTe bHbIM
CNyXOBbIM YCTPOMNCTBOM Ha BPEMSI CNyLUaHWIA obpaLllanTech No Homepy (628) 652-7589. 3anpockl 4OMKHbI 4eNaTbC MUHUMYM
3a 48 YacoB 0o Ha4ana crnyLlaHus.
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Remote Access to Information and Participation

In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the
numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive
diirectives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus.

On May 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings
remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing
and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to
submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@stfgov.org. Visit
the SFGovIV website (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television
station.

The public comment call-in line number is (415) 655-0001. You will also need an access code to join the
meeting. The access code for this hearing is 146 819 1287. This information will also be provided on the
Department’s webpage www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGov1V broadcast.

As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on
the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission.

ROLL CALL:
President: Aaron Hyland
Vice President: Diane Matsuda
Commissioners: Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, Jonathan

Pearlman, Lydia So

A. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT

At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With
respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the
item is reached in the meeting. Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to
three minutes.

The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on
the posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment. In response to public
comment, the commission is limited to:

(1) responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or

(2) requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or
(3) directing staff to place the item on a future agenda. (Government Code Section 54954.2(a))

Notice of Remote Hearing & Agenda Page 30f 7
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B.

DEPARTMENT MATTERS

1.

Director’s Announcements

2. Review of Past Events at the Planning Commission, Staff Report and Announcements
COMMISSION MATTERS
3. President’s Report and Announcements
4, Consideration of Adoption:
e Draft Minutes for November 4, 2020
Adoption of Commission Minutes — Charter Section 4.104 requires all commissioners to
vote yes or no on all matters unless that commissioner is excused by a vote of the
Commission. Commissioners may not be automatically excluded from a vote on the
minutes because they did not attend the meeting.
5. Commission Comments & Questions

e Disclosures.

¢ Inquiries/Announcements. Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may
make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to
the Commissioner(s).

e Future Meetings/Agendas. At this time, the Commission may discuss and take
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that
could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of
the Historic Preservation Commission.

CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the
Historic Preservation Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the
Commission. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the
Commission, the public, or staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the
Consent Calendar and considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing.

6.

2018-000505COA (R. SALGADO: (628) 652-7332)
370 LEXINGTON STREET - located on the west side of Lexington Street, between 20th and
21st Streets; Lot 059 in Assessor’s Block 3609 (District 9) - Request for a Certificate of
Appropriateness for legalization of facade and window alterations completed without
Planning Department approval, in connection with Planning Department Case No. 2017-
015608ENF, and new wood windows at the front facade and modifications to the side gate
to correct work done without Planning Department approval. The subject property is
located within the Article 10 Liberty-Hill Landmark District, and is located within the RTO-
M (Residential Transit Oriented-Mission) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk Limit.
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
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E. REGULAR CALENDAR

7.

ADJOURNMENT

2020-008490DES (F. MCMILLEN: (628) 652-7376)
1830 SUTTER STREET - located on the north side of Sutter Street between Webster and
Buchanan streets, Lot 035 in Assessor’s Block 0676 (District 5). Consideration to
Recommend to the Board of Supervisors Landmark Designation of the Japanese
YWCA/Issei Women's Building (1830 Sutter Street) as an individual Article 10 Landmark
pursuant to Section 1004.2 of the Planning Code. The Japanese YWCA/Issei Women'’s
Building is significant for its association with Japanese American women and the founding
of the first independent Japanese YWCA in the United States. The property is significant for
its association with African American civil rights movement as the building served as the
San Francisco chapter on the Committee on Racial Equality (CORE) and numerous
gatherings, meetings and events to advance African American civil rights. The building is
also significant for its association with LGBTQ history as the property was the center of
Bayard Rustin’s organizing activities early in his career and was location of the first
convention of the Mattachine Society in 1954. The building is also significant as an
excellent example of the work of master architect, Julia Morgan. 1830 Sutter is located in a
RM-3 (Residential-Mixed, Medium Density) zoning district and 40-X Height and Bulk
district.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve

2016-013156SRV (M. BOUDREAUX / S. PARKS: (628) 652-7375)
CITYWIDE CULTURAL RESOURCES SURVEY UPDATE - Informational presentation to update
the Commission on the on-going Citywide Cultural Resources Survey, including discussion
of framework for citywide historic context statement, development of intangible heritage
methodology, finalization of core survey advisor’s group, and next steps. This will be the
first of quarterly updates to the Commission.

Preliminary Recommendation: None - Informational
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Hearing Procedures
The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on the first and third Wednesday, of most months. The full hearing

schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.

Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.

¢+ When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.
Speakers will hear two alarms. The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining. The second louder
sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.

Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).

For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:

1. Presentation by Staff;

2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect,

engineer, expeditor and/or any other advisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

4, Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the
hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

5. Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

6. Staff follow-up and/or conclusions;

7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened
by the Chair;

8. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or
continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.

w

Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of
four (4) votes. A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members
present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).

Hearing Materials
Each item on the Agenda may include the following documents:

e  Planning Department Case Executive Summary

e  Planning Department Case Report

o Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions
e Public Correspondence

Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission prior to a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record
only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner. Correspondence may be emailed
directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.

Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation
Commission, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103-2414. Written comments received by the close of the
business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made part of the
official record.

Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be

received by the Planning Department reception eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing. All submission packages
must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) copies.
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Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for
distribution.

Appeals
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation

Commission hearing.

Case Type Case Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body
Certificate of Appropriateness COA (A) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals**
CEQA Determination - EIR ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Permit to Alter/Demolish PTA (H) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals**

**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal. An appeal of an
Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.

For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. For more
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or
board.of supervisors@sfgov.org.

Challenges
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a

Permit to Alter, (3) a Landmark or Historic District designation, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone
else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation
Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.

Proposition F
Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use

matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community
Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island
Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the
Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months
after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been
resolved. For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.
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		Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

		Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding...

		San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

		Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report l...

		B. DEPARTMENT MATTERS

		Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringin...
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Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, 
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Jonas P. Ionin









[bookmark: _Hlk36802641]Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor







Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: https://www.sfgovtv.org/planning









Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance.



Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.

 

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589), or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.

CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的至少48個小時提出要求。

TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 

RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания.



[bookmark: _Hlk37062483]Remote Access to Information and Participation 



[bookmark: _Hlk37426845]In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 



On May 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television station. 

[bookmark: _Hlk48037677]The public comment call-in line number is (415) 655-0001.  You will also need an access code to join the meeting.  The access code for this hearing is 146 819 1287. This information will also be provided on the Department’s webpage www.sfplanning.org and during the live SFGovTV broadcast.



As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission.





 ROLL CALL:		

	President:	Aaron Hyland

	Vice President:	Diane Matsuda

		Commissioners:                	Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, Jonathan Pearlman, Lydia So





A.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes.



The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on the posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment.  In response to public comment, the commission is limited to: 



(1)  responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or

(2)  requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or 

(3)  directing staff to place the item on a future agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2(a))




B.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



1.	Director’s Announcements	

	

2.	Review of Past Events at the Planning Commission, Staff Report and Announcements



C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



3.	President’s Report and Announcements



4.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for November 4, 2020



Adoption of Commission Minutes – Charter Section 4.104 requires all commissioners to vote yes or no on all matters unless that commissioner is excused by a vote of the Commission.  Commissioners may not be automatically excluded from a vote on the minutes because they did not attend the meeting.

	

5.	Commission Comments & Questions

· Disclosures.

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Historic Preservation Commission.



D.	CONSENT CALENDAR



All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the Historic Preservation Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing.



6.	2018-000505COA	(R. SALGADO: (628) 652-7332)

370 LEXINGTON STREET – located on the west side of Lexington Street, between 20th and 21st Streets; Lot 059 in Assessor’s Block 3609 (District 9) - Request for a Certificate of Appropriateness for legalization of façade and window alterations completed without Planning Department approval, in connection with Planning Department Case No. 2017-015608ENF, and new wood windows at the front façade and modifications to the side gate to correct work done without Planning Department approval. The subject property is located within the Article 10 Liberty-Hill Landmark District, and is located within the RTO-M (Residential Transit Oriented-Mission) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk Limit.  

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions


E.	REGULAR CALENDAR  



7.	2020-008490DES	(F. MCMILLEN: (628) 652-7376)

1830 SUTTER STREET – located on the north side of Sutter Street between Webster and Buchanan streets, Lot 035 in Assessor’s Block 0676 (District 5). Consideration to Recommend to the Board of Supervisors Landmark Designation of the Japanese YWCA/Issei Women’s Building (1830 Sutter Street) as an individual Article 10 Landmark pursuant to Section 1004.2 of the Planning Code. The Japanese YWCA/Issei Women’s Building is significant for its association with Japanese American women and the founding of the first independent Japanese YWCA in the United States. The property is significant for its association with African American civil rights movement as the building served as the San Francisco chapter on the Committee on Racial Equality (CORE) and numerous gatherings, meetings and events to advance African American civil rights. The building is also significant for its association with LGBTQ history as the property was the center of Bayard Rustin’s organizing activities early in his career and was location of the first convention of the Mattachine Society in 1954. The building is also significant as an excellent example of the work of master architect, Julia Morgan. 1830 Sutter is located in a RM-3 (Residential-Mixed, Medium Density) zoning district and 40-X Height and Bulk district.  

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve



[bookmark: _GoBack]8.	2016-013156SRV	(M. BOUDREAUX / S. PARKS: (628) 652-7375)

CITYWIDE CULTURAL RESOURCES SURVEY UPDATE – Informational presentation to update the Commission on the on-going Citywide Cultural Resources Survey, including discussion of framework for citywide historic context statement, development of intangible heritage methodology, finalization of core survey advisor’s group,  and next steps. This will be the first of quarterly updates to the Commission.

Preliminary Recommendation: None - Informational



ADJOURNMENT




Hearing Procedures

The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on the first and third Wednesday, of most months. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. Presentation by Staff;

2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect, engineer, expeditor and/or any other advisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

3. Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

4. Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

5. Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

6. Staff follow-up and/or conclusions;

7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

8. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



Hearing Materials

Each item on the Agenda may include the following documents:

· Planning Department Case Executive Summary

· Planning Department Case Report

· Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions

· Public Correspondence



Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission prior to a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner.  Correspondence may be emailed directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.  



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation Commission, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made part of the official record.  



Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department reception eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) copies.



Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. 



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Certificate of Appropriateness

		COA (A)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		CEQA Determination - EIR

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Permit to Alter/Demolish

		PTA (H)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**







**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a Permit to Alter, (3) a Landmark or Historic District designation, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



Proposition F

Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.
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Advance

				To:		Historic Preservation Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				November 18, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2016-008192SRV		1830 Sutter Street 										McMillen

						Article 10 designation of the Japanese YWCA - Adoption

		2018-000505COA		370 Lexington Street										Salgado

						 legalizing work done at the front and secondary facades

				Citywide Cultural Resources Survey Update										Boudreaux

						Informational

				December 2, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		Various		Legacy Business Registry Applications										Wilborn

						Five Applications

				December 16, 2020						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2017-012086ENV		770 Woolsey Avenue										Callagy

						Review and comment on draft preservation alternatives

		2019-021869COA		1216 Fulton Street										Ferguson

						COA for vertical and horizontal addition

		2019-013740COAVAR		812 Scott Street										Taylor

						COA

				GGP - Update										Taylor

						Informational

				January 6, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

				January 20, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

				February 3, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2015-005890DES		554 Fillmore Street										Ferguson

						Landmark Designation Recommendation

				February 17, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner
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Action Items

		HPC Action Items								 

		Date		Item						CONT.		NOTES		HEARING DATE

		3/7/12		Priorities on Landmark Designation Work Program										TBD

						Pending completion of Preserve America Grant Tasks

		3/21/12		Discussion of incentives and preservation tools for historic cultural uses/resources										TBD

						Follow-up based on 12/5/12 Hearing

		6/20/12		HPC Review and Comment of CEQA Ducuments										TBD

						Pending request with Environmental Planning

		12/19/12		Condition of Mothers Building										TBD

						With RecPark and Arts Commission Representatives

		2/6/13		Update on monastery materials to return back to Santa Maria de 'Ovila Monastery in Spain										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Martinez

		2/6/13		Status update on Settlement Agreement re: mitigation monitoring and enforcement										TBD

						Request by President Damkroger & Commissioner Martinez

		2/6/13		Status of Golden Gate Park Landmark Designation, including Stow Lake Boat House										TBD

						Request by President Damkroger

		3/6/13		Update on Preservation Website										5/15/13

						Request by Commissioner Wolfram

		10/2/13		Inventory of Interpretive displays associated with EIRs										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Johns

		5/15/13		2nd Update on Preservation Website										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Wolfram

		10/2/13		Inventory of Interpretive displays associated with EIRs										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Johns

		2/5/14		Discuss HPC promotion and involvement in 20% Federal Rehabilitation Tax Credit Program										TBD

						Request by Vice President Wolfram, with representatives from OHP

		2/19/14		Update on Draft Preservation Element										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Matsuda, President Hasz 

		2/19/14		Discuss local application of Secretary of the Interior's Standards										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Pearlman

		2/19/14		Status of Golden Gate Park Landmark Designation, including Stow Lake Boat House										TBD

						Request by Commissioner Matsuda
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To:		Staff

From:	Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:		Historic Preservation Commission Hearing Results

	

NEXT RESOLUTION No:  1154

NEXT MOTION No:  0429

NEXT COMMENT LETTER:  0089

M = Motion; R = Resolution; L = HPC Comment Letter

   November 4, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for ARC September 19, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Foley absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for HPC October 7, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Foley absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for HPC October 21, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Foley absent)



		

		2014.1036ENV

		447 Battery Street

		Schuett

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-1152

		2020-009508PCA  

		American Indian Cultural District Expansion Ordinance

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval with Modifications as amended directing Staff to continue working on the Area boundaries and with the Community.

		+4 -0 (Hyland, So recused; Foley absent)



		R-1153

		2020-003248PCA

		State-Mandated Accessory Dwelling Unit Controls [Bf 201008]

		Flores

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended to include a reference to the Architectural Review Standards.

		+6 -0 (Foley absent)







   October 21, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003248PCA

		State-Mandated Accessory Dwelling Unit Controls [BF 201008]

		Flores

		Continued to November 4, 2020

		+7 -0



		R-1145

		2020-008542LBR

		2200 Cesar Chavez Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1146

		2020-008543LBR

		2025 Jerrold Avenue

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1147

		2020-008540LBR

		2201 Sutter Street

		Bishop

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1148

		2020-008541LBR

		412 Valencia Street

		Bishop

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1149

		2020-008544LBR

		225 11th  Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1150

		2020-008538LBR

		2237 Mason Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0428

		2019-023182COA

		351 San Carlos Street

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2019-023182VAR

		351 San Carlos Street

		Cisneros

		Asst. ZA Closed PC, indicated an Intent to Grant

		



		R-1151

		2020-008490DES

		1830 Sutter Street

		McMillen

		Adopted a Resolution to Initiate

		+6 -0 (Matsuda recused)



		

		2015-007181OTH

		Preservation Reporting and Landmarks Update

		Boudreaux

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   October 7, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft HPC Minutes for September 16, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1140

		2020-004819MLS

		450 Pacific Avenue

		Kirby

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Pearlman recused)



		R-1141

		2020-004811MLS

		1315 Waller Street

		Taylor

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1142

		2020-004685MLS

		59 Potomac Street

		Ferguson

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0427

		2019-012604PTA

		1035 Howard Street

		Giacomucci

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Black absent)



		R-1143

		2020-008397CRV

		2868 Mission Street

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Black absent)



		R-1144

		2020-008400CRV

		535 Green Street

		McMillen

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Black absent)



		

		2019-021884ENV

		2500 Mariposa Street

		Greving

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   September 16, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-023623COA

		130 Townsend Street

		Westhoff

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   September 16, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for August 19, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 2, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2019-014146ENV

		520 John Muir Drive

		Greving

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		R-1135

		2020-007531LBR

		915 Howard Street

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1136

		2020-007532LBR

		1315 18th Street

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1137

		2020-007533LBR

		989 Market Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1138

		2020-007534LBR

		2480 San Bruno Avenue

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1139

		2020-007535LBR

		906 Cole Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0







  September 2, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to September 16, 2020

		+6 -0 (Pearlman absent)



		M-0424

		2020-001258PTA-02

		447 Minna Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Pearlman absent)



		M-0425

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 Scott Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Pearlman absent)



		M-0426

		2019-017681COA

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive -Music Concourse, Golden Gate Park

		Taylor

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Pearlman absent)







   August 19, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 15, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+7 -0



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to September 2, 2020

		+7 -0



		M-0421

		2020-004998COA

		35 Onondaga Avenue

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		R-1128

		2020-006843LBR

		1663 Mission Street, Suite 225

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1129

		2020-006847LBR

		1615 20th STREET

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1130

		2020-006871LBR

		1330 25th STREET

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1131

		2020-006872LBR

		919 Kearny Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1132

		2020-006873LBR

		376 Fillmore Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1133

		2020-006874LBR

		718 Grant Avenue

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0422

		2019-005728COA

		945-947 Minnesota Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		

		2019-005728VAR

		945-947 Minnesota Street

		Giacomucci

		Continued Indefinitely

		



		M-0423

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street (3359 24th Street)

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions as amended directing the Sponsor to continue working with staff on design, specifically:

1. Color of exterior cladding to be lighter and in keeping with existing;

2. No wholesale removal of roof tiles;

3. Double entry doors;

4. Interior detailing of stair and ceiling; and

5. Bartlett side addition window to relate to the 24th Street side.

and, conduct additional community outreach as it relates to construction.

		+7 -0



		R-1134

		2020-006641DES

		“History of Medicine in California” Frescoes, 533 Parnassus Avenue

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Landmark Designation as amended that the murals remain together on Parnassus.

		+6 -0 (Foley absent)



		

		2020-005090OTH

		UCSF Comprehensive Parnassus Heights Plan

		Cleemann

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2016-003351CWP

		Centering Planning on Racial and Social Equity

		Flores

		Reviewed and Commented

		







  July 15, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 17, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		R-1127

		2016-003351CWP

		Resolution Centering Preservation Planning on Racial and Social Equity

		Caltagirone

		Adopted with Amendments, directing Staff to continue working with the HPC Officers on the final resolution language.

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to August 19, 2020

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 SCOTT STREET

		Kwiatkowska

		Continued to September 2, 2020

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Requirements [BF TBD

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

		Acting ZA Continued to August 19, 2020

		



		R-1125

		2020-005179PCA

		Continuation of Use for Certain Nonconforming Parking Lots - Mission Street Neighborhood Commercial Transit District [BF 200421]

		Flores

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)



		R-1126

		2019-006264DES

		1315 Waller Street

		McMillen

		Adopted a Resolution Supporting the Nomination

		+6 -0 (Johns absent)







  June 17, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes For HPC May 6, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Foley absent)



		

		

		Motion Directing Staff to Draft a Resolution supporting the Department’s efforts re: Racial & Social Equity

		

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		

		Letter Supporting The Legacy Business Program

		Caltagirone

		Adopted with Amendments

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to July 1, 2020

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 Scott Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Continued to July 15, 2020

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		2019-017767DES

		Lake Street Landmark District

		LaValley

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		M-0419

		2015-014170COA-02

		804-806 22nd Street

		Giacomucci

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		M-0420

		2015-013876PTA

		207 Powell Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Foley disqualified)



		

		2017-004557ENV

		550 O’farrell Street

		McKellar

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   June 3, 2020 HPC Cancellation and Continuances:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to June 17, 2020

		



		

		2015-014170COA-02

		804-806 22nd Street

		Giacomucci

		Continued to June 17, 2020

		







  May 20, 2020 HPC Cancellation and Continuances:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to June 3, 2020

		



		

		2018-013643COA

		556-560 Scott Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Continued to June 17, 2020

		







  May 6, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for ARC February 5, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for HPC April 15, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended and Corrected

		+7 -0



		

		

		Certified Local Government Program (CLG) Annual Report

		Boudreaux

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Requirements [BF TBD]

		Flores

		Continued to July 15, 2020

		+7 -0



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 20, 2020.

		+7 -0



		R-1124

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		

		Legacy Business Program

		Caltagirone

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   April 15, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street

		Ferguson

		Continued to May 6, 2020

		+7 -0



		M-0416

		2019-017569COA

		735 Montgomery Street

		Salgado

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-0417

		2019-016968COA

		1086-1088 Fulton Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-0418

		2020-000441COA

		53-57 Potomac Street

		Ferguson

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2020-000052PCA

		Standard Environmental Requirements [BF TBD]

		Flores

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 6, 2020

		+7 -0



		R-1120

		2020-003292LBR

		715 Harrison Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1121

		2020-003293LBR

		1414 Ocean Avenue

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1122

		2020-003294LBR

		25 Van Ness Avenue

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1123

		2020-003295LBR

		285 South Van Ness Avenue

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0







  April 15, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street

		Cisneros

		Reviewed and Commented

		







April 1, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street

		Cisneros

		Continued to April 15, 2020

		







April 1, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

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

		53-57 POTOMAC STREET

		Ferguson

		Continued to April 15, 2020

		



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 VALLEJO STREET

		Ferguson

		Continued to April 15, 2020

		



		

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Continued to May 6, 2020

		







March 18, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-021832COA

		300 Bartlett Street

		Cisneros

		Continued to April 1, 2020

		







March 18, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-022126COA-03

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

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

		







February 19, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 5, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-0412

		2016-013739COA-02

		933-935 Valencia Street

		Kwiatkowska

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-0413

		2019-001839COA

		1128 Market Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-0414

		2019-001318COA

		740 Tennessee Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Historic wood siding rather that plaster;

2. Distinctly different wood siding to be used for the bay windows; and 

3. Wood windows for the rear elevation.

		+7 -0



		M-0415

		2019-022126COA-02

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Approved with Conditions as amended to eliminate the proposed lighted sign.

		+5 -0 (Hyland recused; So absent)







February 5, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-004772COA

		3250-70 18th Street

		Giacomucci

		Reviewed and Commented

		







February 5, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 15, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Continued to March 18, 2020

		+7 -0



		M-0411

		2019-019493PTA

		972 Mission Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-1118

		2019-023608CRV

		FY 2019-2021 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended

		+7 -0



		

		2019-016220OTH

		Mural Projects

		Gunther

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-1119

		2019-022536DES

		4767-4773 Mission Street

		McMillen

		Initiated

		+7 -0







January 15, 2020 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009197COA

		1772 Vallejo Street, Landmark #31

		Ferguson

		Reviewed and Commented

		







January 15, 2020 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 18, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Election of Officers

		Ionin

		Hyland – President;

Matsuda – Vice.



Pearlman, Black, So – ARC;

Matsuda – Cultural Heritage Liaison.

		+7 -0



		

		2019-023608CRV

		FY 2020-2022 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		SB 330: Housing Crisis Act of 2019

		Bintliff

		None - Informational

		



		R-1115

		2020-000031LBR

		2883 Mission Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1116

		2020-000032LBR

		160 Ellis Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended

		+7 -0



		R-1117

		2020-000035LBR

		1201 Divisadero Street

		Caltagirone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0407

		2019-022126COA

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Eliminating the provision for any extension beyond March 31, 2021; and

2. Recommending Rec&Park conduct community outreach regarding the effect of lighting and implement measures to mitigate its impact.

		+4 -1 (Hyland recused; Foley absent)



		M-0408

		2018-010825COA

		694 Tennessee Street

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Foley, Matsuda absent)



		

		2018-010825VAR

		694 Tennessee Street

		Giacomucci

		Acting ZA Closed the public hearing and indicated an Intent to Grant

		



		M-0409

		2017-001073COA

		1701 Franklin Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Pearlman recused; Foley, Matsuda absent)



		M-0410

		2019-007049COA

		600 Stockton Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Foley, Matsuda absent)
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR BREED AND SUPERINTENDENT MATTHEWS ANNOUNCE NEW
PARTNERSHIP TO ASSESS SCHOOL FACILITIES

Date: Thursday, November 12, 2020 10:40:43 AM

Attachments: 11.12.20 School Site Assessments.pdf

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

Date: Thursday, November 12, 2020 at 10:31 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR BREED AND SUPERINTENDENT
MATTHEWS ANNOUNCE NEW PARTNERSHIP TO ASSESS SCHOOL FACILITIES

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, November 12, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

«#% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR BREED AND SUPERINTENDENT MATTHEWS
ANNOUNCE NEW PARTNERSHIP TO ASSESS SCHOOL
FACILITIES

City will send 20 Disaster Service Workers to support District staff with classroom
assessments to prepare for school reopening

San Francisco, CA — Under an agreement between the San Francisco Unified School
District (SFUSD) and the City and County of San Francisco, the City will be sending staff to
help support the District’s school facility assessments. The District has assessed 20 schools
and has an additional 65 buildings that need to be inspected to meet the goal of having its
youngest students and other vulnerable student groups back in the classroom.

The District is working with the City’s COVID-19 Command Center to deploy 20 City
Disaster Service Workers (DSWs) starting the week of November 16 to form School Site
Assessment Teams. Disaster Service Workers are City employees from departments who
perform varying emergency-related services across the City, from staffing the Emergency
Operations Center to working at food banks.

The School Site Assessment Team will work with district staff to assess school facilities on a
classroom by classroom basis for their readiness to receive students and staff for in-person
learning during this pandemic. These evaluations will include things like operability of
classroom windows; type of classroom furniture; presence of functional hand washing sinks;


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

LoNDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

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

City will send 20 Disaster Service Workers to support District staff with classroom assessments
to prepare for school reopening

San Francisco, CA — Under an agreement between the San Francisco Unified School District
(SFUSD) and the City and County of San Francisco, the City will be sending staff to help
support the District’s school facility assessments. The District has assessed 20 schools and has an
additional 65 buildings that need to be inspected to meet the goal of having its youngest students
and other vulnerable student groups back in the classroom.

The District is working with the City’s COVID-19 Command Center to deploy 20 City Disaster
Service Workers (DSWs) starting the week of November 16 to form School Site Assessment
Teams. Disaster Service Workers are City employees from departments who perform varying
emergency-related services across the City, from staffing the Emergency Operations Center to
working at food banks.

The School Site Assessment Team will work with district staff to assess school facilities on a
classroom by classroom basis for their readiness to receive students and staff for in-person
learning during this pandemic. These evaluations will include things like operability of
classroom windows; type of classroom furniture; presence of functional hand washing sinks; and
basic working condition of the classroom, for example window shades and classroom light
fixtures. These Site Assessment Teams will provide valuable data on school site readiness for a
hybrid or full in-person learning school day.

“We know that opening our public schools is going to be challenging, but the City is ready to do
what we can to help get our kids back in schools starting in January,” said Mayor Breed. “By
sending City staff over to help with school building assessments, we can speed up the work that
needs to be done to make sure our classrooms are safe and healthy places for our kids and our
teachers. The City will continue to find ways to support the District’s plans to open in whatever
way we can because nothing matters more than ensuring that our children and our families are
supported during this challenging time.”

“While SFUSD conducts annual inspections and regular maintenance related to classroom

operability, new inspections are necessary in order to assess conditions in the context of COVID

health and safety,” said Superintendent Dr. Vincent Matthews. “We’ve completed these site

assessments at several school sites but there are dozens more to go. We are grateful to have the
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

City’s partnership to conduct site assessments quickly and thoroughly so we can make any
needed adjustments as soon as possible.”

SFUSD Superintendent Matthews shared that the district has a target date of January 25 for a
return to in-person learning for the district’s youngest learners and a group of elementary school
students who receive special education services if public health indicators and numerous other
prerequisites are in place.

The City and school district continue to discuss other ways the City can support SFUSD with
returning to in-person learning. At the recent Board of Education meeting, the School Board
members voted to enter into an agreement with Curative, a testing company that will support the
District’s plans for having a testing program that meets the needs for reopening. A testing
program, along with ensuring classrooms are ready, are key steps in preparing for reopening.

HiH
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and basic working condition of the classroom, for example window shades and classroom light
fixtures. These Site Assessment Teams will provide valuable data on school site readiness for
a hybrid or full in-person learning school day.

“We know that opening our public schools is going to be challenging, but the City is ready to
do what we can to help get our kids back in schools starting in January,” said Mayor Breed.
“By sending City staff over to help with school building assessments, we can speed up the
work that needs to be done to make sure our classrooms are safe and healthy places for our
kids and our teachers. The City will continue to find ways to support the District’s plans to
open in whatever way we can because nothing matters more than ensuring that our children
and our families are supported during this challenging time.”

“While SFUSD conducts annual inspections and regular maintenance related to classroom
operability, new inspections are necessary in order to assess conditions in the context of
COVID health and safety,” said Superintendent Dr. Vincent Matthews. “We’ve completed
these site assessments at several school sites but there are dozens more to go. We are grateful
to have the City’s partnership to conduct site assessments quickly and thoroughly so we can
make any needed adjustments as soon as possible.”

SFUSD Superintendent Matthews shared that the district has a target date of January 25 for a
return to in-person learning for the district’s youngest learners and a group of elementary
school students who receive special education services if public health indicators and
numerous other prerequisites are in place.

The City and school district continue to discuss other ways the City can support SFUSD with
returning to in-person learning. At the recent Board of Education meeting, the School Board

members voted to enter into an agreement with Curative, a testing company that will support
the District’s plans for having a testing program that meets the needs for reopening. A testing
program, along with ensuring classrooms are ready, are key steps in preparing for reopening.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES $3.5 MILLION EXPANSION IN FINANCIAL
RELIEF FOR SMALL BUSINESSES

Date: Thursday, November 12, 2020 10:14:02 AM

Attachments: 11.09.20 Small Business Support SF HELP.pdf

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

Date: Monday, November 9, 2020 at 10:19 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES $3.5
MILLION EXPANSION IN FINANCIAL RELIEF FOR SMALL BUSINESSES

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, November 9, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

«#% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES $3.5 MILLION
EXPANSION IN FINANCIAL RELIEF FOR SMALL
BUSINESSES

Since March, San Francisco has dedicated nearly $21 million in grants and loans to support
more than 1,150 small businesses and their employees

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced a $3.5 million expansion of
the San Francisco Hardship and Emergency Loan Program (SF HELP). The program will
provide zero interest loans of up to $50,000 to approximately 80 small businesses as

San Francisco continues on the road to economic recovery. Since the beginning of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the City has identified nearly $21 million in grants and loans for more
than 1,150 local small businesses and their employees.

SF HELP promotes Mayor Breed’s focus on economic recovery. With thin margins and few
reserves, many small businesses are relying on credit in order to bridge the reduced revenues
that they have seen over the past several months. SF HELP fills a gap for very small
businesses that lack meaningful access to credit. By offering a tool designed to sustain
disadvantaged small businesses and give them the capital required to re-start their operations,
SF HELP aims to advance recommendations from the City’s Economic Recovery Task Force
to provide local economic stimulus, promote safe reopening, and pursue economic justice.

“I’m so glad that we’re able to provide another round of much-needed funding for San
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
reserves, many small businesses are relying on credit in order to bridge the reduced revenues that
they have seen over the past several months. SF HELP fills a gap for very small businesses that
lack meaningful access to credit. By offering a tool designed to sustain disadvantaged small
businesses and give them the capital required to re-start their operations, SF HELP aims to
advance recommendations from the City’s Economic Recovery Task Force to provide local
economic stimulus, promote safe reopening, and pursue economic justice.

“I’m so glad that we’re able to provide another round of much-needed funding for San
Francisco’s small businesses. COVID-19 isn’t over and as we begin the hard work of recovering
as a city, we need to continue to be there for our businesses—especially those who have
difficulty accessing other forms of credit or financial assistance,” said Mayor Breed. “These
zero-interest loans will help our beloved neighborhood businesses and entrepreneurs reopen
safely. Small businesses, like our neighborhood restaurants, corner markets, and hair salons,
keep our commercial corridors thriving and provide employment for San Franciscans. Their
survival and success will help us recover together.”

The $3.5 million expansion of SF HELP will focus on private, for-profit low-income to
moderate-income small businesses. The loans can be used to pay for payroll, rent, inventory,
equipment, and other operating expenses businesses have as they gradually reopen. They are
zero interest loans up to $50,000, with a repayment term of up to six years. There are no loan
fees, personal guarantees, or collateral requirements for the borrower.

SF HELP supports entrepreneurs and business owners who are the backbone of San Francisco’s
economy, many of whom are people of color with limited access to traditional credit and
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affordable financing. SF HELP offers the bridge financing businesses need to make it through
the pandemic and provides the financial support they need to reopen and recover. The program
was created in April 2020 and since then has funded 227 small businesses with $8.5 million in
loans and programming. Of the 227 loans awarded, 74% are minority-owned small businesses
and 52% are women-owned businesses; representing more than 20 different types of sectors such
as bars, hair salons, dry cleaners, health services, restaurants, manufacturers, gyms, and child
care, etc. in San Francisco. Altogether, these businesses were able to retain nearly 730 jobs. For
more information on the impact of SF HELP and other financial relief for businesses, go to
oewd.org/impact.

“The success of minority-owned businesses - who make up more than half of San Francisco’s
small business communities - is essential for an equitable recovery and our City’s ongoing
cultural and economic vitality. SF HELP has been a lifeline for those small businesses hardest hit
by this pandemic, including our women-owned businesses, providing access to the capital they
need to operate, pay their rent and keep their employees,” said Joaquin Torres, Director of the
Office of Economic and Workforce Development. “We’re grateful for the partnerships that
expand SF HELP and allow our most vulnerable San Francisco small businesses impacted by
COVID-19 to feel some relief. Together with the Mission Economic Development Agency and
the State’s IBank, we’re making the most of the City’s philanthropic contributions to provide
easy access to the funds that will bridge small businesses as they reopen, rehire employees, and
bring back the economic activity and community services that our neighborhoods need.”

SF HELP is a result of public and private partnerships that leverage various resources, including
the City’s General Fund and donations to the Give2SF COVID-19 Response and Recovery Fund.
This expansion of SF HELP was developed in collaboration with the Mission Economic
Development Agency (MEDA), a nonprofit partner that works to provide and support small
businesses with technical assistance and other services to help them reopen and recover. MEDA
used $1 million from Give2SF and the City’s General Fund and a finance tool from the
California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (IBank) to leverage and expand the
loan program by $2.45 million.

“The reality for small businesses in our City has changed dramatically since March 2020. Most
small businesses have a vastly diminished customer base, if they are able to continue operating at
all. Many have had to lay off their workers, and even if they received a PPP loan, those funds
have been long since spent,” said Luis Granados, Chief Executive Officer, MEDA. “MEDA’s
Fondo Adelante, a Community Development Financial Institution (CDFI), is proud to partner
with Mayor Breed, OEWD and the California I-Bank to put into action SF HELP -- an equitable
solution for quickly deploying stopgap, no-cost capital during this crisis.”

“The SF HELP loan gave us a sense of security,” said Natalia Bartrom of Infinite Beauty. “l now
have confidence that | can stay in business instead of closing down.”

“The SF HELP loan helped my business with the capital it needed to stay afloat during COVID-
19. It would have been very difficult to survive without this program,” said Ariel Lowis Balam-
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Diaz of Mi Yucatan. “l am using the funds to pay past due rent, hire an employee to help me as
we reopen, and to purchase inventory.”

“Our business has not been the same since we had to shut down because of the pandemic,” said
Abdul Alrammah of Yemen Kitchen. “We’ve lost about 75% of our business. Our SF HELP loan
will help us pay some of our back rent — we’re 5 months behind — and pay our 2 employees.”

The loans can be used for payroll, rent, other fixed costs and inventory. Small businesses
interested in applying for SF HELP can visit link.oewd.org/zeroloan. The deadline to apply is
November 25 at 11:59 p.m. MEDA will then hold a lottery to determine which businesses will be
invited to submit a formal application; this lottery will include a preference for low- to moderate-
income-owned businesses throughout the city.
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Francisco’s small businesses. COVID-19 isn’t over and as we begin the hard work of
recovering as a city, we need to continue to be there for our businesses—especially those who
have difficulty accessing other forms of credit or financial assistance,” said Mayor Breed.
“These zero-interest loans will help our beloved neighborhood businesses and entrepreneurs
reopen safely. Small businesses, like our neighborhood restaurants, corner markets, and hair
salons, keep our commercial corridors thriving and provide employment for San Franciscans.
Their survival and success will help us recover together.”

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

SF HELP supports entrepreneurs and business owners who are the backbone of San
Francisco’s economy, many of whom are people of color with limited access to traditional
credit and affordable financing. SF HELP offers the bridge financing businesses need to make
it through the pandemic and provides the financial support they need to reopen and recover.
The program was created in April 2020 and since then has funded 227 small businesses with
$8.5 million in loans and programming. Of the 227 loans awarded, 74% are minority-owned
small businesses and 52% are women-owned businesses; representing more than 20 different
types of sectors such as bars, hair salons, dry cleaners, health services, restaurants,
manufacturers, gyms, and child care, etc. in San Francisco. Altogether, these businesses were
able to retain nearly 730 jobs. For more information on the impact of SF HELP and other
financial relief for businesses, go to oewd.org/impact.

“The success of minority-owned businesses - who make up more than half of San Francisco’s
small business communities - is essential for an equitable recovery and our City’s ongoing
cultural and economic vitality. SF HELP has been a lifeline for those small businesses hardest
hit by this pandemic, including our women-owned businesses, providing access to the capital
they need to operate, pay their rent and keep their employees,” said Joaquin Torres, Director
of the Office of Economic and Workforce Development. “We’re grateful for the partnerships
that expand SF HELP and allow our most vulnerable San Francisco small businesses impacted
by COVID-19 to feel some relief. Together with the Mission Economic Development Agency
and the State’s IBank, we’re making the most of the City’s philanthropic contributions to
provide easy access to the funds that will bridge small businesses as they reopen, rehire
employees, and bring back the economic activity and community services that our
neighborhoods need.”

SF HELP is a result of public and private partnerships that leverage various resources,
including the City’s General Fund and donations to the Give2SF COVID-19 Response and
Recovery Fund. This expansion of SF HELP was developed in collaboration with the Mission
Economic Development Agency (MEDA), a nonprofit partner that works to provide and
support small businesses with technical assistance and other services to help them reopen and
recover. MEDA used $1 million from Give2SF and the City’s General Fund and a finance tool
from the California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (IBank) to leverage and
expand the loan program by $2.45 million.

“The reality for small businesses in our City has changed dramatically since March 2020.
Most small businesses have a vastly diminished customer base, if they are able to continue
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operating at all. Many have had to lay off their workers, and even if they received a PPP loan,
those funds have been long since spent,” said Luis Granados, Chief Executive Officer,
MEDA. “MEDA’s Fondo Adelante, a Community Development Financial Institution (CDFI),
is proud to partner with Mayor Breed, OEWD and the California [-Bank to put into action SF
HELP -- an equitable solution for quickly deploying stopgap, no-cost capital during this
crisis.”

“The SF HELP loan gave us a sense of security,” said Natalia Bartrom of Infinite Beauty. “I
now have confidence that I can stay in business instead of closing down.”

“The SF HELP loan helped my business with the capital it needed to stay afloat during
COVID-19. It would have been very difficult to survive without this program,” said Ariel
Lowis Balam-Diaz of Mi Yucatan. “I am using the funds to pay past due rent, hire an
employee to help me as we reopen, and to purchase inventory.”

“Our business has not been the same since we had to shut down because of the pandemic,”
said Abdul Alrammah of Yemen Kitchen. “We’ve lost about 75% of our business. Our SF
HELP loan will help us pay some of our back rent — we’re 5 months behind — and pay our 2
employees.”

The loans can be used for payroll, rent, other fixed costs and inventory. Small businesses
interested in applying for SF HELP can visit link.oewd.org/zeroloan. The deadline to apply is
November 25 at 11:59 p.m. MEDA will then hold a lottery to determine which businesses will
be invited to submit a formal application; this lottery will include a preference for low- to
moderate-income-owned businesses throughout the city.
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From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Date: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 at 9:09 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR
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FROM DELAYING CITY PROJECTS AND POLICIES
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##% PRESS RELEASE ***

MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR MATT HANEY
INTRODUCE LEGISLATION TO PREVENT FRIVOLOUS
APPEALS FROM DELAYING CITY PROJECTS AND
POLICIES

Legislation would raise the requirements for City projects to be appealed and allow them to
continue during the appeals process to prevent unnecessary delays

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and District 6 Supervisor Matt Haney today
introduced legislation designed to prevent the abuse of the appeals process for City projects
and policies that often result in unnecessary delays and increased costs. Under current law, one
person is capable of appealing and pausing projects and policies related to transportation,
public works, infrastructure, and the environment. The legislation maintains the ability for
appeals to be filed, but raises the requirements to prevent frivolous appeals that result in
project delays and cost increases.

One recent example was an appeal of the City’s Slow Streets program, which is designed to
give pedestrians access to roads with limited car traffic in order to safely move around San
Francisco during the global COVID-19 pandemic. This appeal of the Slow Streets program
was filed by just two individuals. While the appeal was eventually dismissed unanimously, the
delay was unnecessary and resulted in hundreds of hours of staff time that could have
otherwise been spent responding to other City and resident needs. Additionally, the appeal
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MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR MATT HANEY
INTRODUCE LEGISLATION TO PREVENT FRIVOLOUS

APPEALS FROM DELAYING CITY PROJECTS AND POLICIES

Legislation would raise the requirements for City projects to be appealed and allow them to
continue during the appeals process to prevent unnecessary delays

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and District 6 Supervisor Matt Haney today
introduced legislation designed to prevent the abuse of the appeals process for City projects and
policies that often result in unnecessary delays and increased costs. Under current law, one
person is capable of appealing and pausing projects and policies related to transportation, public
works, infrastructure, and the environment. The legislation maintains the ability for appeals to be
filed, but raises the requirements to prevent frivolous appeals that result in project delays and
cost increases.

One recent example was an appeal of the City’s Slow Streets program, which is designed to give
pedestrians access to roads with limited car traffic in order to safely move around San Francisco
during the global COVID-19 pandemic. This appeal of the Slow Streets program was filed by
just two individuals. While the appeal was eventually dismissed unanimously, the delay was
unnecessary and resulted in hundreds of hours of staff time that could have otherwise been spent
responding to other City and resident needs. Additionally, the appeal meant countless residents
in neighborhoods throughout the City did not have access to a nearby Slow Street for weeks, and
in some cases months. A total of six separate appeals have been filed to stall San Francisco
Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) projects since June.

“Our response to the pandemic has shown that San Francisco is capable of doing great things
when we don’t get in our own way,” said Mayor Breed. “People should be able to appeal
projects and policies that are going to impact our city and their lives, but by setting the bar so
low for an appeal to be filed, we set ourselves up for delays and cost overruns before we even get
started. That’s a system designed to fail. This legislation allows for appeals to continue, while
preventing frivolous appeals that keep our city from moving forward.”

Under the legislation, appeals to the Board of Supervisors for projects that are not directly under
their decision-making authority would require 50 signatures from San Francisco residents, or
five members of the Board of Supervisors, as opposed to the current rules that require just one
appellant. Furthermore, a number of project types could continue while the appeal is being heard,
such as projects that are temporary in nature, involve easily reversible physical changes, or are
related to health and safety.
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“This is common sense, necessary legislation, only applying to public projects, that will improve
our city’s ability to act decisively and respond with urgency to meet public needs, while still
protecting the right to appeal,” said Supervisor Haney. “The public’s right to appeal government
decisions is an important part of our democracy, but a single person should not be able to
completely derail a public project like Slow Streets or emergency transit lanes that fulfill a clear
public purpose and can be reversed.”

“After the recent CEQA appeal that paused Slow Streets was rejected, our teams were in the
streets within 12 hours and new Slow Streets were installed on Clay and Noe streets and Pacific
and Tompkins avenues in less than a week,” said SFMTA Director of Transportation Jeffrey
Tumlin. “These welcoming and accessible improvements are needed to keep our city moving
during this crisis. With fewer frivolous appeals, staff could instead spend time on the City’s
recovery.”

Under the legislation, the Slow Streets program appeal would have required 50 signatures to be
filed, and implementation of the program would have been allowed to continue during the
appeal, since the physical changes are easily reversible and only require removing signs saying
the road is closed to through traffic.

“We want to thank Mayor Breed and Supervisor Haney for their forward-thinking legislation that
will help our city meet our Vision Zero and Transit First goals with urgency,” said Janice Li,
Advocacy Director for the San Francisco Bicycle Coalition. “The San Francisco Bicycle
Coalition enthusiastically supports this legislation that lets the City planners do what they do
best: design safe streets that make it easier for people to walk, bike and take transit.”

HiH
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From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Date: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 at 12:37 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO ROLL BACK SELECT
ACTIVITIES IN RESPONSE TO INCREASE IN COVID-19 CASES

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, November 10, 2020
Contact: San Francisco Joint Information Center, dempress@sfgov.org

##% PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO TO ROLL BACK SELECT ACTIVITIES IN
RESPONSE TO INCREASE IN COVID-19 CASES

Due to an increase in COVID-19 cases, San Francisco will roll back the reopening of indoor
dining, reduce capacity of fitness centers and movie theaters, and will pause approval of plans
for indoor instruction for high schools.

Department of Public Health will assess the situation and resumption of further reopening is
dependent on improvement of COVID-19 impact on City

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax
today announced the City will adjust its reopening due to a significant and rapid increase in
COVID-19 case rates in San Francisco, coupled with the current increase in cases and
hospitalizations in California and across the United States. San Francisco will temporarily roll
back the reopening of indoor dining, and will reduce the capacity of fitness centers and movie
theaters. Additionally, San Francisco will pause the reopening of indoor instruction at high
schools that have not already opened. These changes will go into effect at 11:59 pm on Friday,
November 13, 2020.

San Francisco is rolling back these activities in an effort to contain the spread of the virus by
focusing on higher risk indoor activities and other behaviors that increase the concentration of
aerosols. The Department of Public Health will continue to closely monitor the City’s case
count, infection rate, and hospitalization rate in order to determine how quickly we can flatten
the curve and determine when we can resume safe reopening.
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
announced the City will adjust its reopening due to a significant and rapid increase in COVID-19
case rates in San Francisco, coupled with the current increase in cases and hospitalizations in
California and across the United States. San Francisco will temporarily roll back the reopening
of indoor dining, and will reduce the capacity of fitness centers and movie theaters. Additionally,
San Francisco will pause the reopening of indoor instruction at high schools that have not
already opened. These changes will go into effect at 11:59 pm on Friday, November 13, 2020.

San Francisco is rolling back these activities in an effort to contain the spread of the virus by
focusing on higher risk indoor activities and other behaviors that increase the concentration of
aerosols. The Department of Public Health will continue to closely monitor the City’s case count,
infection rate, and hospitalization rate in order to determine how quickly we can flatten the curve
and determine when we can resume safe reopening.

“I cannot emphasize enough how important it is that everyone act responsibly to reduce the
spread of the virus. Every San Franciscan needs to do their part so that we can start moving in
the right direction again,” said Mayor Breed. “I know this is not the news our residents and
businesses wanted to hear, but as I’ve said all along, we’re making decisions based on the data
we’re seeing on the ground. Right now, our public health officials are telling us we need to take
these steps to get the virus under control and save lives — so that’s what we’re doing. The hard
decisions we’re making now will help us get our youngest residents back to school. We will
continue to act in the best interest of public health and we’ll continue to help our impacted
businesses as much as we are able. | am hopeful that in the coming months we will have support
from our federal government to support these businesses and the losses they have suffered as
well. 1 will certainly be advocating that we do.”

Since October 2, San Francisco has experienced a 250% increase in COVID-19 cases. The
rolling back of certain businesses and activities is necessary to mitigate the aggressive growth of
the virus that would cost lives and threaten the capacity of our health care system. This step is
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aimed to minimize the activities that are known to be of higher risk for increasing the spread of
the virus — particularly indoor activities, high traffic activities, and those that allow for mask
removal or increase the production of aerosols, such as physical activity and eating.

San Francisco is reducing the capacity at which fitness centers and movie theaters are allowed to
operate. Indoor dining will need to close at this time. High schools that have not yet opened will
remain closed for any indoor instruction, though DPH will work with high schools that want to
reopen educational programming in an outdoor setting.

One of the key indicators of COVID-19 prevalence in the city, the number of new cases per day
per 100,000 people, has more than doubled over the last three weeks from a low of 3.7 cases per
100,000 people to 9 cases per 100,000 people. The rate of increase in hospitalizations of
COVID-19 patients is also a key indicator that affects the pace of reopening. San Francisco
recently hit a low of 21 people in the hospital with COVID, but expects that number will increase
in the coming weeks.

“From the beginning of the City’s pandemic response, San Francisco has carefully monitored
and responded to the pandemic, which has helped us lead the country in our containment,” said
Dr. Grant Colfax, San Francisco Director of Health. “As always, we must listen to the data.
The data is now telling us this virus is rapidly traveling throughout our city. If we do not take
immediate action, we will have the increase in cases and hospitalizations that we have seen in
many other cities across the country and around the world, but have yet to experience in San
Francisco.”

The Department of Public Health will continue to monitor the City’s COVID-19 Key Public
Health Indicators and other information to determine whether the infection rate is stabilizing and
when the City can resume reopening. The City strongly encourages San Franciscans to avoid
gatherings, wear face coverings when leaving home, and keep their distance from other people,
and to get tested for COVID-19 if they feel sick.

This rollback will mean lost revenue for businesses that are already stretched thin. In an effort to
support those businesses that are directly impacted, the Mayor is dedicating $4 million through
the following programming:

e $2.5 million will be available to waive taxes and fees for impacted small businesses,
including fees for winter augmentations such as heaters. More information about how to
participate is forthcoming.

e $500,000 will be available through the Shared Spaces Equity Grants program for small
neighborhood-serving businesses to pay for technical assistance and capital costs of
setting up and augmenting shared spaces for restaurants to operate outdoors. More
information about this program is forthcoming.

e $500,000 in grant funding will be available through SF Shines for Reopening for
restaurants to purchase equipment and re-configure space in order to meet social
distancing requirements. For more information:_link.oewd.org/sfshines.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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e $500,000 will be available through SF HELP zero interest loans to low- and moderate-
income restaurant owners with little access to credit in order to pay for fixed costs,
inventory, and other operating expenses. For more information: link.oewd.org/zeroloan.

“This rollback will be extremely tough for our restaurants and bars who are already struggling to
make ends meet, but we must work together to contain this virus, trust the science before us, and
once again flatten this curve. Our economy and the thousands of employees that need and depend
on this work rests with each of us to do our part,” said Joaquin Torres, Director of the Office of
Economic and Workforce Development. “These dedicated funds will focus on those small
businesses, restaurants and bars that will be severely impacted by this rollback and offer some
supportive relief as we continue our push towards economic recovery. In the coming weeks, our
office, under the leadership of Mayor Breed, will continue to advocate our state and federal
partners for the substantial relief necessary to stabilize our small businesses and support their
employees.”

The following activities will halt indoor operations until further notice:
e Indoor dining at restaurants or bars serving meals in any context including standalone
restaurants, food courts in shopping centers, and dining establishments in hotels,
museums or other venues.

The following activities will pause until further notice:
e High schools that are not already open with approved plans. (Switching to outdoor
instruction within certain parameters).

The following activities will be required to reduce capacity to a maximum of 50 people indoors:
e Fitness centers may remain open to the lesser of 25% capacity or 50 people (down
from 100).
e Movie theaters may remain open to the lesser of 25% capacity or 50 people (down
from 100).

All other businesses and activities that are currently allowed may continue operating at this time,
including outdoor dining and take-out, elementary and middle schools, offices, retail shopping,
personal services, and cultural and family activities such as museums and aquariums.

San Francisco is taking this action in order to prevent further rollbacks of businesses and
activities that have reopened and to support elementary and middle schools, community hubs and
other learning and development activities to continue to open as safely as possible.

San Francisco’s increase in cases is significant but not unique. California has seen a 29%
increase in new positive cases over the last week and many counties have been re-assigned to
more restrictive tiers on the State’s system. Other Bay Area counties, such as Contra Costa, are
also seeing a significant increase in cases and have started considering similar measures to curtail
activities in order to slow the spread of the virus, despite what they are allowed by the State. The
City’s relative success in managing the virus to-date is due to its COVID-19 response

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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infrastructure, which includes testing, contact tracing, and support services, its deliberate and
measured approach to reopening, and a willingness to act quickly and aggressively in order to
protect public health.

The Department of Public Health will monitor the Health Indicators, the risk of specific
activities, the estimated reproductive rate of the virus, the regional data and the State’s actions in
determining when and how to move forward, pause, or dial back reopening. More information
about San Francisco’s reopening timeline can be found at https://sf.gov/step-by-step/reopening-
san-francisco.

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
we’re seeing on the ground. Right now, our public health officials are telling us we need to
take these steps to get the virus under control and save lives — so that’s what we’re doing. The
hard decisions we’re making now will help us get our youngest residents back to school. We
will continue to act in the best interest of public health and we’ll continue to help our impacted
businesses as much as we are able. I am hopeful that in the coming months we will have
support from our federal government to support these businesses and the losses they have
suffered as well. I will certainly be advocating that we do.”

Since October 2, San Francisco has experienced a 250% increase in COVID-19 cases. The
rolling back of certain businesses and activities is necessary to mitigate the aggressive growth
of the virus that would cost lives and threaten the capacity of our health care system. This step
is aimed to minimize the activities that are known to be of higher risk for increasing the spread
of the virus — particularly indoor activities, high traffic activities, and those that allow for
mask removal or increase the production of aerosols, such as physical activity and eating.

San Francisco is reducing the capacity at which fitness centers and movie theaters are allowed
to operate. Indoor dining will need to close at this time. High schools that have not yet opened
will remain closed for any indoor instruction, though DPH will work with high schools that
want to reopen educational programming in an outdoor setting.

One of the key indicators of COVID-19 prevalence in the city, the number of new cases per
day per 100,000 people, has more than doubled over the last three weeks from a low of 3.7
cases per 100,000 people to 9 cases per 100,000 people. The rate of increase in
hospitalizations of COVID-19 patients is also a key indicator that affects the pace of
reopening. San Francisco recently hit a low of 21 people in the hospital with COVID, but
expects that number will increase in the coming weeks.

“From the beginning of the City’s pandemic response, San Francisco has carefully monitored
and responded to the pandemic, which has helped us lead the country in our containment,”
said Dr. Grant Colfax, San Francisco Director of Health. “As always, we must listen to the
data. The data is now telling us this virus is rapidly traveling throughout our city. If we do not
take immediate action, we will have the increase in cases and hospitalizations that we have
seen in many other cities across the country and around the world, but have yet to experience
in San Francisco.”

The Department of Public Health will continue to monitor the City’s COVID-19 Key Public
Health Indicators and other information to determine whether the infection rate is stabilizing
and when the City can resume reopening. The City strongly encourages San Franciscans to
avoid gatherings, wear face coverings when leaving home, and keep their distance from other
people, and to get tested for COVID-19 if they feel sick.

This rollback will mean lost revenue for businesses that are already stretched thin. In an effort
to support those businesses that are directly impacted, the Mayor is dedicating $4 million
through the following programming:

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

e §500,000 in grant funding will be available through SF Shines for Reopening for
restaurants to purchase equipment and re-configure space in order to meet social
distancing requirements. For more information: link.oewd.org/sfshines.

e $500,000 will be available through SF HELP zero interest loans to low- and moderate-
income restaurant owners with little access to credit in order to pay for fixed costs,
inventory, and other operating expenses. For more information: link.oewd.org/zeroloan.

“This rollback will be extremely tough for our restaurants and bars who are already struggling
to make ends meet, but we must work together to contain this virus, trust the science before us,
and once again flatten this curve. Our economy and the thousands of employees that need and
depend on this work rests with each of us to do our part,” said Joaquin Torres, Director of the
Office of Economic and Workforce Development. “These dedicated funds will focus on those
small businesses, restaurants and bars that will be severely impacted by this rollback and offer
some supportive relief as we continue our push towards economic recovery. In the coming
weeks, our office, under the leadership of Mayor Breed, will continue to advocate our state
and federal partners for the substantial relief necessary to stabilize our small businesses and
support their employees.”

The following activities will halt indoor operations until further notice:
e Indoor dining at restaurants or bars serving meals in any context including
standalone restaurants, food courts in shopping centers, and dining establishments in
hotels, museums or other venues.

The following activities will pause until further notice:
¢ High schools that are not already open with approved plans. (Switching to outdoor
instruction within certain parameters).
The following activities will be required to reduce capacity to a maximum of 50 people
indoors:
 Fitness centers may remain open to the lesser of 25% capacity or 50 people (down
from 100).
e Movie theaters may remain open to the lesser of 25% capacity or 50 people (down
from 100).
All other businesses and activities that are currently allowed may continue operating at this
time, including outdoor dining and take-out, elementary and middle schools, offices, retail
shopping, personal services, and cultural and family activities such as museums and
aquariums.

San Francisco is taking this action in order to prevent further rollbacks of businesses and
activities that have reopened and to support elementary and middle schools, community hubs
and other learning and development activities to continue to open as safely as possible.

San Francisco’s increase in cases is significant but not unique. California has seen a 29%
increase in new positive cases over the last week and many counties have been re-assigned to
more restrictive tiers on the State’s system. Other Bay Area counties, such as Contra Costa,
are also seeing a significant increase in cases and have started considering similar measures to
curtail activities in order to slow the spread of the virus, despite what they are allowed by the
State. The City’s relative success in managing the virus to-date is due to its COVID-19
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response infrastructure, which includes testing, contact tracing, and support services, its
deliberate and measured approach to reopening, and a willingness to act quickly and
aggressively in order to protect public health.

The Department of Public Health will monitor the Health Indicators, the risk of specific
activities, the estimated reproductive rate of the virus, the regional data and the State’s actions
in determining when and how to move forward, pause, or dial back reopening. More
information about San Francisco’s reopening timeline can be found at https://sf.gov/step-by-
step/reopening-san-francisco.

HiH
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Introduction - Resolution - Landmark Initiation - 447 Battery Street Jones-Thierbach Coffee Company
Building

Date: Thursday, November 12, 2020 9:52:43 AM

Attachments: Resolution - Peskin - Initiating Landmark Designation of 447 Battery Street.docx

Introduction Form - Peskin - Resolution to Initiate Landmark Status - 447 Battery Street Jones-Thierbach Coffee
Company Building.pdf

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

From: "Hillis, Rich (CPC)" <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>

Date: Thursday, November 12, 2020 at 5:49 AM

To: "lonin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Cc: Rachel Schuett <rachel.schuett@sfgov.org>, Lisa Gibson <lisa.gibson@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fw: Introduction - Resolution - Landmark Initiation - 447 Battery Street Jones-
Thierbach Coffee Company Building

Jonas - See below. Pls distribute to Commissioners. Thanks, Rich

From: Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 5:26 PM

To: Hillis, Rich (CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>

Cc: Hepner, Lee (BOS) <lee.hepner@sfgov.org>

Subject: FW: Introduction - Resolution - Landmark Initiation - 447 Battery Street Jones-Thierbach
Coffee Company Building

FYI. Please distribute to your commission.
Aaron

From: Hepner, Lee (BOS) <lee.hepner@sfgov.org>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 5:07 PM

To: BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>

Cc: Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>

Subject: Introduction - Resolution - Landmark Initiation - 447 Battery Street Jones-Thierbach Coffee
Company Building

Please see the subject introduction attached hereto.
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Supervisor Peskin

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS		Page 2

Resolution initiating landmark designation under Article 10 of the Planning Code of the Jones-Thierbach Coffee Company Building at 447 Battery Street.



WHEREAS, Under Planning Code, Section 1004.1, the Board of Supervisors (Board) may by Resolution initiate landmark designation; and

WHEREAS, The existing building at 447 Battery Street was constructed in 1907 at its current location in the present-day Financial District, an area of San Francisco that was largely industrial and commercial in character around the turn of the twentieth century and effectively leveled by the earthquake and fires that devastated much of San Francisco in 1906; and

WHEREAS, Following the 1906 earthquake disaster, members of San Francisco’s political and business spheres raced to rebuild areas within and adjacent to downtown San Francisco, including the existing building at 447 Battery Street; and

WHEREAS, Upon its construction, the existing building at 447 Battery Street expressed the relatively straightforward design of an industrial warehouse, with a minimal level of external architectural ornamentation, which was limited to the evenly spaced bands of segmental arched windows at the Battery Street and Merchant Street facades as well as the simple belt courses that spanned these same facades between the third story and the roofline; and

WHEREAS, The firm that initially occupied the subject building upon its construction in 1907 was Thierbach and Company, a medium-sized, San Francisco-based coffee roasting and wholesaling company led by Charles Frederick Thierbach, which changed its name to the Jones-Thierbach Coffee Company when Michael P. Jones joined the firm in 1912; and

WHEREAS, The Jones-Thierbach Coffee Company contributed to the active local coffee industry in San Francisco, which represented a significant commercial sector in San Francisco during the second half of the nineteenth century and the first decades of the twentieth century; and

WHEREAS, The design of the Jones-Thierbach Coffee Company is attributed to Frank S. Van Trees, a classically trained Bay Area architect who was responsible for works elsewhere in San Francisco, whose simplified architectural scheme at 447 Battery Street aligned with the building’s utilitarian warehouse function; and

WHEREAS, The setting of the Jones-Thierbach Coffee Company Building experienced a substantial shift in character during the post-World War II period, when the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency pushed forward plans to demolish a large portion of the city’s produce market district – located near the waterfront immediately east of the subject building – and construct the Golden Gateway Redevelopment Project; and

WHEREAS, The trend toward urban development in support of commercial and financial firms displaced a number of the remaining industrial and warehousing businesses near the waterfront north of Market Street; and

WHEREAS, The building at 447 Battery Street is a relic of the industrial and mercantile history of San Francisco and illustrative of the massive efforts to reconstruct downtown San Francisco following the widespread destruction caused by the 1906 earthquake and fires; and

WHEREAS, The building at 447 Battery Street survived Redevelopment and was later surveyed and listed in the 1968 book Here Today: San Francisco’s Architectural Heritage, which was subsequently adopted by the San Francisco Board of Supervisors through Resolution no. 268-70, and therefore qualifies as an official local historical register under CEQA; and

WHEREAS, The building at 447 Battery Street has historical significance to San Francisco’s coffee industry and is the only building known to remain in the industry’s hub north of Market Street that was used for coffee roasting and warehousing, and stands as a significant built-environment remnant that signifies San Francisco’s economy and urban form during the first half of the twentieth century; and

WHEREAS, The building at 447 Battery Street is architecturally significant because of its status as a rare remaining example of a brick commercial building and warehouse in the present-day Financial District and shares a historic context and many architectural characteristics with contributors to surrounding historic districts including the Jackson Square Landmark District, the Commercial-Leidesdorff Conservation District, and the Front-California Conservation District, each of which represents an intact collection of post-1906 commercial buildings that remain embedded within a more recent urban fabric; now, therefore be it

RESOLVED, That the Board hereby initiates landmark designation of the intact Jones-Thierbach Coffee Company located at 447 Battery Street; and, be it

FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board requests that the Planning Department prepare a Landmark Designation Report to submit to the Historic Preservation Commission for its consideration of the special historical, architectural, and aesthetic interest and value of the existing building at 447 Battery Street; and, be it 

FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board requests that the Historic Preservation Commission consider whether the existing building at 447 Battery Street warrants landmark designation, and submit its recommendation to the Board according to Article 10 of the Planning Code.


Please walt...

If this message is not eventually replaced by the proper contents of the document, your PDF
viewer may not be able to display this type of document.
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Thanks,
Lee

Lee Hepner

Legislative Aide

Supervisor Aaron Peskin

(415) 554-7419 | pronouns: he, him, his

District 3 Website
Sign up for our newsletter here!
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From: McKellar, Jennifer (CPC)

To: Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Chan, Deland (CPC); Diamond, Susan (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC);
Imperial, Theresa (CPC); Tanner, Rachael (BOA); Hyland, Aaron (CPC); Matsuda, Diane (CPC); Black, Kate
(CPC); Eoley, Chris (CPC); Johns, Richard (CPC); Pearlman, Jonathan (CPC); So, Lydia (CPC)

Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC); Son, Chanbory (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); CPC-Commissions Secretary
Subject: Publication of the Responses to Comments (RTC) on the 550 O"Farrell Street Project Draft EIR
Date: Monday, November 09, 2020 1:38:03 PM

Good afternoon,

The Responses to Comments (RTC) on the Draft EIR for the proposed 550 O’Farrell
Street Project, Case No. 2017-004557ENYV, has been published today, November 9,
2020.

To review, please use the link below:

Responses to Comments on the Draft EIR (550 O'Farrell St, 2017-004557ENV)

Please note that the certification of the Draft EIR will be before the Planning

Commission on December 10, 2020.

Should you have any questions or require any additional materials, please contact me

at the project email address, CPC.5500FarrellStEIR@sfgov.org, or at (628) 652-7563.

Sincerely,

Jennifer Barbour McKellar, MPA, Senior Planner

Environmental Planning Division

San Francisco Planning

PLEASE NOTE MY NEW ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER AS OF AUGUST 17:
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103

Direct: 628.652.7563 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

IN ORDER FOR US TO MOVE, OUR OFFICE WILL BE CLOSED WITH NO ACCESS TO PHONES OR E-
MAIL ON THURSDAY, AUGUST 13 and FRIDAY, AUGUST 14. WE APPRECIATE YOUR PATIENCE.

Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person
services, but we are operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and
the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely.
The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our

services here.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO LAUNCH INDEPENDENT REVIEW OF CITY'S EQUAL
EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PRACTICES TO PREVENT WORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION

Date: Wednesday, November 04, 2020 2:28:15 PM

Attachments: 11.02.20 Equal Employment Opportunity Review.pdf

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

Date: Monday, November 2, 2020 at 2:24 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO TO LAUNCH INDEPENDENT
REVIEW OF CITY’S EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PRACTICES TO
PREVENT WORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, November 2, 2020
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice(@sfgov.or

##% PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO TO LAUNCH INDEPENDENT REVIEW OF
CITY’S EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PRACTICES
TO PREVENT WORKPLACE DISCRIMINATION

An independent review will be led by former National Labor Relations Board Chairman
William Gould and will be conducted alongside separate review by City Controller

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Acting Human Resources Director Carol
Isen today announced an independent and comprehensive review of the City’s workplace
policies and practices with a focus on claims of bias, harassment, discrimination, and
retaliation. The investigation will be conducted by William B. Gould IV, Charles A. Beardsley
Professor of Law, Emeritus, at the Stanford Law School. This investigation will be in addition
to other efforts by the City to review and address concerns raised by employees about hiring,
discipline, and retention practices with the goal of restoring employee confidence and trust in
the Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) complaint process.

This announcement follows Mayor Breed’s Executive Directive 18-02, issued in September
2018, which established consistent standards for employee recruitment, retention, and tracking
of disciplinary actions with the goal of increasing diversity in the City’s workforce and
ensuring the workplace is place free from harassment, bias, and discrimination. Additionally,
in response to concerns raised by San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA)
employees, in October 2018, Mayor Breed appointed an independent ombudsperson to review
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
policies and practices with a focus on claims of bias, harassment, discrimination, and retaliation.
The investigation will be conducted by William B. Gould IV, Charles A. Beardsley Professor of
Law, Emeritus, at the Stanford Law School. This investigation will be in addition to other efforts
by the City to review and address concerns raised by employees about hiring, discipline, and
retention practices with the goal of restoring employee confidence and trust in the Equal
Employment Opportunity (EEO) complaint process.

This announcement follows Mayor Breed’s Executive Directive 18-02, issued in September
2018, which established consistent standards for employee recruitment, retention, and tracking of
disciplinary actions with the goal of increasing diversity in the City’s workforce and ensuring the
workplace is place free from harassment, bias, and discrimination. Additionally, in response to
concerns raised by San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) employees, in
October 2018, Mayor Breed appointed an independent ombudsperson to review and make
recommendations on reforms needed to ensure transparency, accountability, and the appropriate
resolution of employee EEO claims at the SFMTA.

“We appreciate Professor Gould bringing in his expertise and experience to ensure that we are
doing everything we can so that the structures we have in place are not creating a discriminatory
environment in any way,” said Mayor Breed. “Our workplaces need to be safe and welcoming
spaces for all our workers, and that starts with making sure we have the right policies and
procedures in place.”

Carol Isen began serving as Acting Human Resources Director in October and has been
committed to cultivating a culture of respect, accountability, and belonging, as well as other
structural changes that will create better transparency for EEO claims to better serve City
employees.

“Professor Gould, with his long career as a leading intellectual and practitioner in the field of
labor and employment law and civil rights,” said Acting Human Resources Director Carol Isen.
“As a third party neutral arbitrator and factfinder, is eminently qualified to lead us through a
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comprehensive, neutral and fair review of our EEO complaint and investigatory processes to
ensure they work for all employees.”

“I am honored to receive and accept this charge,” said Professor William Gould. “The people of
San Francisco expect a government that functions judiciously and efficiently. | am committed to
a thorough and independent examination, which will be fair, equitable and constructive. | look
forward to working with all the concerned parties in this endeavor.”

In addition to Professor Gould’s investigation, City Controller Ben Rosenfield will also conduct
a review of the EEO Division’s internal controls and workflow, in order to assess any
weaknesses in EEO’s business processes that exposed the City to the misrepresentations made by
one of its managers.

“We look forward to performing a comprehensive review of the existing EEO process and
providing practical recommendations that will assist the Department of Human Resources in
restructuring their EEO systems to better serve the employees of the City and County of
San Francisco,” said Ben Rosenfield, City Controller.

City data shows persistent inequities in the City workforce with respect to wages, and
promotional opportunities. Most notably, in comparison to other races, Black employees overall
hold lower-paying positions, are disciplined more frequently, and file more claims of harassment
or discrimination than their colleagues of other ethnicities file. The review will include
interviews, listening sessions, research of existing City policies, examination of relevant
documents, and identifying best practices from comparable jurisdictions.

“Black and Latinx employees of the City and County of San Francisco experience
disproportionately adverse treatment,” said Sheryl Davis, Executive Director of the Human
Rights Commission. “This examination of the City’s EEO process comes at a pivotal time in
City government when these employees are demanding equitable treatment.”

Professor Gould will focus on:

e The core provisions of the Equal Employment Opportunity Act: The City’s current
structure for receiving, investigating, and resolving employee claims of harassment,
discrimination, retaliation, and other prohibited behavior in the workplace. This includes
reviewing past processes, outcomes, and findings in employee EEO complaints;

e Corrective Action and Discipline: Methods to ensure behavior found to be a violation
of the City’s workplace policies are addressed using fair and equal corrective action
practices;

e Data and Reporting: Recommend best practices to track and report data regarding
employee hiring, discipline, and termination with a focus on gender and race;

e Training: Review the effectiveness of current training practices for managers and
supervisors and identifying additional support needed for these individuals in order to
better supervise and resolve conflicts with employees from diverse backgrounds; and
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e Restorative practices: Such as mediation and other innovative dispute resolution
techniques which could be utilized to address and remedy allegations of workplace
discrimination claims.

The City and County of San Francisco employs over 38,000 people and is home to over 60
departments that provide vital public services to City residents. Every City department, manager,
and employee plays a part in shifting the culture in our City workplaces and is responsible for
ensuring our workspaces are free from bias, harassment, and discrimination.

Professor Gould will have access to any appropriate City departments, records, and information
deemed necessary to conduct this review. He will work collaboratively with elected officials, the
Human Resources Department, Human Rights Commission, Office of Racial Equity, City
agencies, labor stakeholders, employees, and other community stakeholders to receive input and
make recommendations to the Department of Human Resources within 120 days. His work is
expected to begin November 30th.

About William B. Gould IV

William B. Gould 1V is Charles A. Beardsley Professor of Law, Emeritus, at Stanford Law
School. A prolific scholar of labor and discrimination law, Gould has been an influential voice in
worker—management relations for more than fifty years and served as Consultant to the U.S.
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (1966-1967) where he conciliated alleged unlawful
employment practices, developed proposals for the conciliation process, and provided
recommendations for the resolution of discrimination claims involving seniority which became
the basis for early federal court interpretations of Title 7 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. He
served as Chairman of the National Labor Relations Board (NLRB, 1994-98) and subsequently
Chairman of the California Agricultural Labor Relations Board (2014-2017). Professor Gould
has been a member of the National Academy of Arbitrators since 1970.

As NLRB Chairman, he played a critical role in bringing the 1994-95 baseball strike to its
conclusion and has arbitrated and mediated more than two hundred labor disputes, including the
1992 and 1993 salary disputes between the Major League Baseball Players Association and the
Major League Baseball Player Relations Committee. He served as Secretary, Labor and
Employment Law Section, American Bar Association (1980-81) as well as Independent Monitor
for FirstGroup America, addressing freedom-of-association complaints (2008-10). Gould also
served as Special Advisor to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development on project
labor agreements (2011-12). A critically acclaimed author of ten books and more than sixty law
review articles, Professor Gould is the recipient of five honorary doctorates for his significant
contributions to the fields of labor law and labor relations.
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and make recommendations on reforms needed to ensure transparency, accountability, and the
appropriate resolution of employee EEO claims at the SFMTA.

“We appreciate Professor Gould bringing in his expertise and experience to ensure that we are
doing everything we can so that the structures we have in place are not creating a
discriminatory environment in any way,” said Mayor Breed. “Our workplaces need to be safe
and welcoming spaces for all our workers, and that starts with making sure we have the right
policies and procedures in place.”

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
labor and employment law and civil rights,” said Acting Human Resources Director Carol
Isen. “As a third party neutral arbitrator and factfinder, is eminently qualified to lead us
through a comprehensive, neutral and fair review of our EEO complaint and investigatory
processes to ensure they work for all employees.”

“I am honored to receive and accept this charge,” said Professor William Gould. “The people
of San Francisco expect a government that functions judiciously and efficiently. I am
committed to a thorough and independent examination, which will be fair, equitable and
constructive. I look forward to working with all the concerned parties in this endeavor.”

In addition to Professor Gould’s investigation, City Controller Ben Rosenfield will also
conduct a review of the EEO Division’s internal controls and workflow, in order to assess any
weaknesses in EEO’s business processes that exposed the City to the misrepresentations made
by one of its managers.

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
promotional opportunities. Most notably, in comparison to other races, Black employees
overall hold lower-paying positions, are disciplined more frequently, and file more claims of
harassment or discrimination than their colleagues of other ethnicities file. The review will
include interviews, listening sessions, research of existing City policies, examination of
relevant documents, and identifying best practices from comparable jurisdictions.

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

o The core provisions of the Equal Employment Opportunity Act: The City’s current
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

o Data and Reporting: Recommend best practices to track and report data regarding
employee hiring, discipline, and termination with a focus on gender and race;

o Training: Review the effectiveness of current training practices for managers and
supervisors and identifying additional support needed for these individuals in order to
better supervise and resolve conflicts with employees from diverse backgrounds; and

» Restorative practices: Such as mediation and other innovative dispute resolution
techniques which could be utilized to address and remedy allegations of workplace
discrimination claims.

The City and County of San Francisco employs over 38,000 people and is home to over 60
departments that provide vital public services to City residents. Every City department,
manager, and employee plays a part in shifting the culture in our City workplaces and is
responsible for ensuring our workspaces are free from bias, harassment, and discrimination.

Professor Gould will have access to any appropriate City departments, records, and
information deemed necessary to conduct this review. He will work collaboratively with
elected officials, the Human Resources Department, Human Rights Commission, Office of
Racial Equity, City agencies, labor stakeholders, employees, and other community
stakeholders to receive input and make recommendations to the Department of Human
Resources within 120 days. His work is expected to begin November 30th.

About William B. Gould IV

William B. Gould IV is Charles A. Beardsley Professor of Law, Emeritus, at Stanford Law
School. A prolific scholar of labor and discrimination law, Gould has been an influential voice
in worker—management relations for more than fifty years and served as Consultant to the U.S.
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (1966-1967) where he conciliated alleged
unlawful employment practices, developed proposals for the conciliation process, and
provided recommendations for the resolution of discrimination claims involving seniority
which became the basis for early federal court interpretations of Title 7 of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964. He served as Chairman of the National Labor Relations Board (NLRB, 1994-98) and
subsequently Chairman of the California Agricultural Labor Relations Board (2014-2017).
Professor Gould has been a member of the National Academy of Arbitrators since 1970.

As NLRB Chairman, he played a critical role in bringing the 1994-95 baseball strike to its
conclusion and has arbitrated and mediated more than two hundred labor disputes, including
the 1992 and 1993 salary disputes between the Major League Baseball Players Association
and the Major League Baseball Player Relations Committee. He served as Secretary, Labor
and Employment Law Section, American Bar Association (1980-81) as well as Independent
Monitor for FirstGroup America, addressing freedom-of-association complaints (2008—10).
Gould also served as Special Advisor to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development on project labor agreements (2011-12). A critically acclaimed author of ten
books and more than sixty law review articles, Professor Gould is the recipient of five
honorary doctorates for his significant contributions to the fields of labor law and labor
relations.
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